
1 

GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 15, 2021 

 (Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Council Chambers) 

I. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET 

1. ROLL CALL

2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

3. OLD BUSINESS

4. NEW BUSINESS
a. 2022 NC Freedom Fest Presentation (Doug McGrath)
b. FY20-21 Fiscal Update (Finance)
c. Low Income Household Water Assistance Program (Finance)
d. Council Committees Discussion (Mayor)
e. Council Meeting Dates for 2022 (City Clerk)

II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET 
Invocation (Jimmy Bryant, The Bridge Church)
Pledge of Allegiance

III. ROLL CALL

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A. Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of November 1, 2021

V. PRESENTATIONS 
B. Warm Body Warm Soul Presentation 
C. Employee Performance Awards   

VI. PUBLIC HEARING
D. SU-10-21 Jose Morquecho – East side of South Berkeley Boulevard between Ash Street and Elm Street

(Planning) 
E. SU-11-21- Sandra H. Bell (Accessory Dwelling) – Northwest of the terminus of Overbrook Road and

Pine Ridge Lane (Planning) 
F. SU-12-21 Wayne Co. Project Shell – (Chemical Manufacturing Facility) Located at the corner of Challen

Court and Gateway Drive and within Park East of the City of Goldsboro’s Industrial Business Park 
(Planning) 

Planning Commission Excused 
G. Contiguous Annexation Request–Tiffany Gardens Phase I- Located on the south side of Central Heights 

Road between N. Oak Forest Drive and Thoroughfare Road (Planning) 

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS (*Motion/Second--Roll Call)
H. Accept Final Upset Bids for 412 East Walnut Street (Oliver Design) (Finance)
I. Authorization of sale of jointly owned property for 400 and 402 Miller Avenue (Bogan Properties, LLC)

(Finance) 
J. Goldsboro Christmas Parade – Temporary Street Closure (Police)
K. Departmental Monthly Reports

IX. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION (*Motion/Second)



2 

X. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

XI. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS  
L. Resolution Expressing Appreciation to Jerry Artis for Service to the City of Goldsboro for More than     

27 Years 
M. Small Business Saturday Proclamation  

 

XII. CLOSED SESSION 
 

XIII. ADJOURN 



Military & 1st Responders 
Appreciation Festival



Military & 1st Responders
Appreciation Festival

• Successfully, brought the base and community 
together in a family-friendly setting downtown 
Goldsboro

• One community…
• With strategic partnerships with the City of 

Goldsboro, SJAFB, Goldsboro Elks, DGDC, 
Downtown Merchants Association, the Arts Council, 
the History Museum, the Chamber of Commerce & 
the Military Affairs Committee



NC Freedom Fest
• 2021 Sponsors…





NC Freedom Fest
• NC Freedom Fest 2022 event elements –

• Thurs, 5/19/22
• NC FF / Center Street Jam

• Saturday, 5/21/22
• NC FF

• Car & Bike Show
• Craft Vendors
• Static Displays
• Kids Activities
• Food Trucks
• Live Music



NC Freedom Fest
• Site…

• Center Street 
• From Ash St. to Spruce St.

• Main events
• The Hub
• The empty lot (City Field) @ 207 S. Center Street



NC Freedom Fest



NC Freedom Fest
• Requesting City of Goldsboro support again for the 

2022 event



FY2020-21 FINANCIAL UPDATE

Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director

November 22, 2021



General Fund – Collections
Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)

2

FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20
Incr/(Decr over 

Prior Year
Taxes 17,275,552$           16,894,382$     $381,170
Sales Tax 10,643,638             9,301,152          $1,342,485
Refuse 3,841,188                3,747,521          $93,667
Utility Franchise 2,031,608                2,658,959          ($627,351)
Golf Course 603,113                   559,686              $43,427
Permits 381,515                   360,564              $20,951
Paramount 164,707                   289,124              ($124,416)
Recreation Fees 138,637                   158,436              ($19,799)
Investment Earnings 9,861                        89,109                ($79,248)
Other Revenues 6,893,282                6,256,755          $636,527
Total 41,983,101$           40,315,689$     1,667,412$        



General Fund Collections
FY 2020-21 Budget to Actual

3

Adjusted Actual YTD%
Budget Collections % of Budget

Taxes 17,131,830$        17,275,552$         100.84%
Licenses & Permits 375,525                 381,515                 101.60%
Revenues Other Agencies:

Local Option Tax 9,813,576             10,643,638           108.46%
Utility Franchise Tax 2,903,873             2,031,608              69.96%
ABC Revenues 93,000                   93,060                    100.06%
Beer & Wine Taxes 146,300                 141,873                 96.97%
Powell Bill 909,163                 868,303                 95.51%
Other Agency Revenues 1,582,262             1,468,352              92.80%

Service Fees from UF 3,046,957             3,046,957              100.00%
Charges for Services 4,985,581             4,977,596              99.84%
Capital Returns 1,438,908             195,736                 13.60%
Other Revenue 1,200,099             858,912                 71.57%
 Total Taxes & Shared Revenues 43,627,075           41,983,101           96.23%



Stormwater Fund – Collections
Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)

and
Budget to Actual FY2020-21

4

Adjusted Actual YTD%
Budget Collections Collections

Stormwater Fee 1,500,000$               1,581,954$            105.46%
Other Revenues 460,600                     9,358                       
Stormwater Fund Totals 1,960,600$               1,591,312$            105.46%

FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20

Incr/(Decr 
over Prior 

Year
Stormwater Fe $1,581,954 $1,594,767 ($12,813)
Loan Proceeds -                        -                        $0
Other Revenue 9,358              8,568              $789
Total $1,591,312 $1,603,336 ($12,024)



Utility Fund – Collections
Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)

5

FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20 Difference

Current Water 7,500,775$       7,273,021$    227,754$        

Current Sewer 9,549,728          9,073,973       475,755          

Late Payment Fees 332,549             309,334           23,215             

Tap Fees 35,150                34,125             1,025               

Compost Fees 62,718                48,617             14,101             

Investment Earnings 3,858                  40,936             (37,078)           
Other Revenues 3,421,317          3,553,511       (132,194)         
Total 20,906,095$     20,333,517$  572,578$        



Utility Fund Collections
FY 2020-21 Budget to Actual

6

Adjusted Actual YTD %
Budget Collections Collections

Charges for Services:
Current Water Charges 7,539,101$           7,500,775$           99.49%
UF-SJAFB 766,771                 1,222,197             159.40%
Current Sewer Charges 9,106,051             9,549,728             104.87%
Late Payment/Svc. Fees 351,170                 343,648                 97.86%
Applied Deposits 203,633                 50,204                   24.65%
Reconnections Fees 15,195                   1,956                      12.87%
Water/Sewer Taps 35,794                   35,150                   98.20%
Compost Revenues 44,403                   62,718                   141.25%
BFP Fees/Insufficient Ck Penalty 6,700                      1,819                      27.15%

Total Charges 18,068,818$         18,768,195$         103.87%

Capital Returns & Misc. Revenue
Investment Earnings 20,801$                 3,858$                   18.55%
Other Misc. Revenue 72,059                   72,562                   100.70%

Total Capital Returns 92,860$                 76,420$                 82.30%
Other Revenues 559,647                 2,061,480             368.35%
Utility Fund Revenue Totals 18,721,325$         20,906,095$         111.67%



Downtown MSD & 
Occupancy Tax Collections 

Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)

7

FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20 Difference
Downtown MSD
Taxes 94,941$             92,325$           2,616$             
Investment Earnings 38                      686                  (648)                 
Other Revenues
Total 94,979$             93,011$           1,968$             

Occupancy Tax
Tax Collections 1,034,175$        995,009$         39,166$           
Investment Earnings/Misc. Revenues 274                    4,487               (4,213)              
Other Revenues 8,923                 13,615             (4,692)              
Total 1,043,372$        1,013,111$      30,261$           



Downtown MSD & 
Occupancy Tax Collections

FY 2020-21 Budget to Actual

8

Adjusted Actual YTD%
Budget Collections Collections

Downtown MSD
Taxes 97,075$             94,941$           97.80%
Investments/Misc. 20,823               38                    0.18%
      Total 117,898$           94,979$           80.56%

Occupancy Tax
Occupancy Tax - Civic Ctr. 686,100$           684,806$         99.81%
Occupancy Tax - T & T 175,700             174,993           99.60%
County of Wayne Occ Tx 170,000             174,376           102.57%
Invest. Earnings/Misc. 172,578             9,197               5.33%
      Total 1,204,378$        1,043,372$      86.63%



Actual Collections
Comparison Actual Current & Prior 

(unaudited)

9

FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20 Difference

General Fund 41,983,101$  40,315,689$  1,667,412$ 

Utility Fund 20,906,095    20,333,517    572,578       

Downtown Development 94,979             93,011             1,968            

Occupancy Tax 1,043,372       1,013,113       30,259          
-                 

Stormwater Fund 1,591,312       1,603,336       (12,024)        

Total 65,618,859$  63,358,666$  2,260,193$ 



Summary –
FY2020-21 Budget to Actual Expenditures

10

Budget Actual
Under/(Over) 

Budget
General Fund 43,627,075$           39,458,713$     4,168,362$        
Utility Fund 18,721,325             16,283,133        2,438,192          
Stormwater Fund 1,960,600                1,782,721          177,879              
Downtown MSD Fund 117,898                   36,988                80,910                
Occupancy Tax Fund 1,204,378                1,109,152          95,226                
Total 65,631,276$           58,670,707$     6,960,569$        



Fund Balance Appropriations
FY 2020-21

11

General Fund $450,661
PO rollover

Utility Fund $142,937
PO rollover

Downtown MSD $  20,000     
PO rollover

Occupancy Tax Fund $155,963
(Lighting & Advertising)

Stormwater Fund $185,000
(TIGER – stormwater work) ________

Total $954,560



FY2020-21 Net Operating Results
(Modified Accrual - unaudited)

12

Budget Actual
Under/(Over) 

Budget
General Fund

Revenues 43,627,074$          41,983,101$          1,643,973$            
Expenditures 43,627,074            39,458,713            4,168,361               

General Fund - Net -$                         2,524,388$            2,524,388               
Util ity Fund

Revenues 18,721,325$          20,906,095$          (2,184,770)             
Expenditures 18,721,325            16,283,133            2,438,191               

Util ity Fund - Net -$                         4,622,962$            4,622,962               
Stormwater Fund

Revenues 1,960,600$            1,591,312$            369,288                  
Expenditures 1,960,600               1,782,721               177,879                  

Stormwater Fund - Net -$                         (191,410)$              (191,410)                 
Downtown MSD Fund

Revenues 117,898$                94,980$                  22,918                    
Expenditures 117,898                  36,985                    80,913                    

Downtown MSD Fund - Net -$                         57,995$                  57,995                    
Occupancy Tax Fund

Revenues 1,204,378$            1,043,372$            161,006                  
Expenditures 1,204,378               1,109,152               95,226                    

Occupancy Tax Fund - Net -$                         (65,780)$                 (65,780)                   

Total - Net Change all  Funds -$                         6,890,159$            6,890,159$            



Questions? 



 

DSS – 8162                                                                Distribution: 

Economic and Family Services        Original – County File 

Copy to Vendor 

  

  

   

 

 

Low Income Household Water Assistance Program (LIHWAP) 

Water and Wastewater Vendor Agreement  
By and Between 

 

_________________________________ County Department of Social Services/Human Services 

and  

________________________________________________________[INSERT NAME OF WATER PROVIDER]  

 

 

 

The undersigned Water Provider agrees to participate in the Low Income Household Water Assistance Program (LIHWAP) 

for the effective 12- month period beginning on (date) ______________ through (date) ______________ .  

 

The undersigned _________________________ County Department of Social Services/Human Services (County DSS) 

will pay to the undersigned Water Provider a portion of the home water or wastewater costs of households eligible to 

receive such assistance. Payment amounts are determined by individual household needs. Eligible households must have a 

household income at or below the 150% Federal Poverty level and water services have been disconnected, in jeopardy of 

disconnection, or have a current bill. Households that receive benefits through the Low Income Home Energy Assistance 

Program (LIHWAP), Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP), Food and Nutrition Services benefits (FNS) and 

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) will automatically be eligible. The following variables will be used to 

determine the benefit amount: income, household size, household drinking water burden or household wastewater burden.   

 

The undersigned Water Provider agrees, as conditions of participation in the program, to the following: 

1. Follow Low-Income Water Assistance Program (LIHWAP) policies and procedures located in the NC LIHWAP 

Policy Manual. 

2. Provide water and/or wastewater services to each eligible and approved residential household for which payment 

is provided under LIHWAP; and 

3. Restore water services upon payment; and 

4. Comply with all North Carolina laws, regulations or other requirements regarding disconnects pertaining to the 

supply of home drinking water and/or wastewater services for residential use; and  

5. Negotiate for continuation or reconnection of service to households determined eligible for LIHWAP benefits; and 

6. Collaborate and do everything possible to ensure the customer has continuous access to home water service; and 

7. Charge all LIHWAP eligible households the same price charged for home drinking water and/or wastewater 

services billed to non-eligible households, as determined by the approved rate setting process; and 

8. Not apply LIHWAP payments to account balances that have previously been written off or paid with other funds; 

and 

9. Not apply LIHWAP payments to commercial accounts. LIHWAP payments should only be applied to residential 

accounts; and 

10. Not discriminate against a LIHWAP eligible household with respect to terms, deferred payment plans, credit, 

conditions of sale, or discounts offered to other customers; and 

11. To credit the entire LIHWAP payment to a household’s account immediately upon receipt of payment from the 

County DSS, regardless of whether the payment results in a credit on the account; and 

12. To provide documentation such as payment confirmation or updated bills of home water and wastewater supplied 

to certified households under LIHWAP as may be required by the County DSS to verify funds were applied to the 

correct accounts; and 

13. To provide upon request and at no cost to the County DSS or the household, information on an applicant’s home 

water and wastewater costs, bill payment history, or arrearage history for the last 12- month billing period; and 

14. Continually maintain accurate records of LIHWAP credit balances and annually reconcile accounts. After one 

year, credit balances must be refunded to the AGENCY, in compliance with LIHWAP Vendor Refund Policies, no 

later than 45 days following the end of the program year 2022; and 

15. Not exchange the household’s credit authorization for cash or give any cash equivalent for excess credit; and 

16. Cooperate with any Federal, State, or local investigation, audit, or program review The Vendor shall allow 

AGENCY representative access to all books and records relating to LIHWAP households for purposes of 

compliance verification with the Agreement; and 



 

DSS – 8162                                                                Distribution: 

Economic and Family Services        Original – County File 

Copy to Vendor 

  

  

   

 

17. LIHWAP funds shall only be applied to open accounts.  If an account is closed, the Water Provider must return all 

funds to the County DSS. LIHWAP funds cannot be applied to a closed account with remaining balance.  

 

Termination of the Agreement: 

1. Termination of this Agreement may occur by either party terminating its duties under this Agreement upon provision of 

thirty (30) calendar days written notice to the other.  

2. This Agreement will terminate immediately should the Water Provider supply false information or attempt to defraud the 

State, the County DSS, or the eligible household. In such cases, no additional reimbursement will be made to the Water 

Provider unless and until such matters are resolved and the Water Provider is exonerated of  

wrongdoing. 

 

 

______________________________________________  _________________________________________ 

Company Name       Print Name of County 

 

______________________________________________  _________________________________________ 

Print Name of Water Provider Representative   Print Name of County DSS Director 

 

 

 

______________________________________________  _________________________________________ 

Signature of Water Provider Representative    Signature of County DSS Director 

 

______________________________________________  _________________________________________ 

Date        Date 

 

______________________________________________  _________________________________________ 

Print Mailing Address      Print Mailing Address 

 

______________________________________________  _________________________________________ 

Print City, State, Zip Code      Print City, State, Zip Code 

 

______________________________________________  _________________________________________ 

Telephone Number      Telephone Number 

 

______________________________________________ 

Provider Federal ID Number (FEIN) or SSN 

 

         



PROPOSED 
2022 Goldsboro City Council Meeting Dates 
*Work Session-5:00 p.m. --- Council Meeting-7:00 p.m.

Monday, January 10 
Monday, January 24  
(2nd and 4th Monday of the month due to Holidays) 

Monday, February 7 
(One meeting in February due to Council Retreat) 

Monday, March 7 
Monday, March 21 

Monday, April 4 
Monday, April 18 

Monday, May 2 
Monday, May 16 

Monday, June 6 
Monday, June 20 

Monday, July 11 
(One meeting in July due to the Holiday) 

Monday, August 1 
Monday, August 15 

Tuesday, September 6 (Monday, September 5th is a holiday – Labor Day) 
Monday, September 19 

Monday, October 3 
Monday, October 17 

Monday, November 7 
Monday, November 21 

Monday, December 5 
Monday, December 19 

Proposed Retreat Dates 2022 
February 21 and 22 (Monday and Tuesday) or February 23 and 24 (Wednesday and Thursday) 

**Meeting dates and/or times are subject to change with proper notice. 

ws Item e



1 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL 
NOVEMBER 1, 2021 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in regular session in Council Chambers, 
City Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on November 1, 2021. 

Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

Archbishop Anthony Slater with Tehillah Church Ministries provided the invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance 
followed. 

Roll Call. 
Present: Mayor David Ham, Presiding 

Councilmember Hiawatha Jones 
Councilmember Bill Broadaway 
Councilmember Brandi Matthews 
Councilmember Gene Aycock  

Absent: Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack 

Approval of Minutes.  Councilmember Broadaway made a motion to approve the minutes of the Work 
Session and Regular Meeting of October 18, 2021. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Aycock and 
unanimously carried.    

District 5 Swearing In Ceremony. Judge Charles Gaylor, III administered the oath of office as District 
5 Councilmember to Charles Gaylor, IV. Councilmember Gaylor took his seat as the District 5 Councilmember. 

Adoption of the Agenda.  Upon motion of Councilmember Aycock, seconded by Councilmember Jones 
and unanimously carried, Council adopted the agenda.  

Public Comment Period.  Mayor Ham opened the public comment period and the following people 
spoke: 

1. Alicia Pierce, 806 South Taylor Street, shared comments concerning the Historic District Commission
and shared concerns regarding councilmember access to the building.

2. Don Halliday commented on the beauty of Center Street and complimented city staff regarding their
work.

3. Karl Landgren invited Council and the public to the Wayne County Liberty First meeting on the 3rd

Tuesday held at Victory Baptist Church.
4. Chip Craig invited Council to attend the Ground Breaking New Train Project on Thursday, November 4

at Herman Park.

No one else spoke and the public comment period was closed.  

Consent Agenda - Approved as Recommended. City Manager Tim Salmon presented the Consent 
Agenda.  All items were considered to be routine and could be enacted simultaneously with one motion and a 
roll call vote.  If a Councilmember so requested, any item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
discussed and considered separately. In that event, the remaining item(s) on the Consent Agenda would be acted 
on with one motion and roll call vote. Councilmember Aycock moved the items on the Consent Agenda, Items 
B-D be approved as recommended by the City Manager and staff.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember 
Broadaway and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in favor of the motion.    

The items on the Consent Agenda were as follows: 
Z-10-21 County of Wayne (O&I‐II to I -2) – North side of Wayne Memorial Drive and on the 

northeast corner of Eighth and Humphrey Streets. Ordnance Adopted.  The County of Wayne owns the 
subject property.  Currently, the property serves as a fleet maintenance facility for County-owned vehicles and 
equipment. 

Item A



2 
 
 
 
 

The applicant requests to rezone the entire property from Office and Institutional (O&I-II) to General Industry (I-
2).  Currently, the present zoning classification is not compatible with existing development.  In addition, the 
County desires to expand operations in the future for the existing site.   
 
As previously stated, half of the subject property is used as a fleet maintenance facility.  The other half of the 
property is undeveloped.  If rezoned, any new improvements to the site will require site and landscape plans 
approved by City officials before construction permits can be issued in the future. 

 
Frontage: 470.5 (Eighth St.) 
Area:  150,118 sq. ft. or 3.44 acres 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING:   
North:   General Business (GB)/Office and Institutional (O&I-2); 
South:  General Business (GB)/Neighborhood Business (NB); 
East:  General Business (GB); and 
West:  Residential (R-9) 

 
The City’s Land Use Plan recommends office and institutional development for the property.  
 
The subject property is not located in a Special Flood Hazard Area.  City water and sewer utilities are available 
to serve the property. 
 
At the public hearing held October 18, 2021, no one appeared to speak for or against the request. 
 
It was recommended that Council accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission and  

1. Find the proposed zoning amendment inconsistent with the City’s adopted Comprehensive Land Use 
Plan. However, the proposed zoning would be compatible with adjacent uses within the surrounding 
area and; 

2. Find the proposed zoning amendment is reasonable and in the public interest because the zoning 
would allow uses that are compatible with adjacent properties within the surrounding areas and; 

3. Adopt an Ordinance changing the zoning for the property from Office and Institutional (O&I-II) to 
General Industry (I-1). Consent Agenda Approval. Aycock/Broadaway (7 Ayes) 

 
ORDINANCE 2021-35 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE OF 
THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA CODE OF ORDINANCES” 

  
Z-11-21 County of Wayne (O&I‐II to I-2) - East of Fourth Street between Clingman and 

Humphrey Streets. Ordinance Adopted. The County of Wayne owns the subject property.  Currently, the 
property is occupied by the Wayne County Animal Services Adoption and Shelter Center and the new E-911 
Communications Center. 

 
The applicant requests to rezone the entire property from Office and Institutional (O&I-II) to General Industry (I-
2).  The County of Wayne seeks to expand County services and operations within the existing site.  County 
leaders believe the present zoning classification would limit the use of the property for future planning and 
development purposes. 
 
If rezoned, any new improvements to the site will require site and landscape plans approved by City officials 
before construction permits can be issued in the future. 

Area:  920,746 sq. ft. or 21.13 acres 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING:   
North:   General Industry (I-2)/Highway Business  
  (HB)/Office and Institutional (O&I-1); 
South:  Residential (R-9); 
East:  Office and Institutional (O&I-II); and 
West:  General Industry (I-2) 

 
The City’s Land Use Plan recommends industrial, office and institutional and medium-density development for 
the property.  
 
The subject property is not located in a Special Flood Hazard Area.  City water and sewer utilities are available 
to serve the property. 



3 
 
 
 
 

 
At the public hearing held October 18, 2021, no one appeared to speak for or against the request. 
 
It was recommended that Council accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission and   

1. Find the proposed zoning amendment inconsistent with the City’s adopted Comprehensive Land Use 
Plan. However, the proposed zoning would be compatible with adjacent uses within the surrounding 
area and; 

2. Find the proposed zoning amendment is reasonable and in the public interest because the zoning 
would allow uses that are compatible with adjacent properties within the surrounding areas and; 

3. Adopt an Ordinance changing the zoning for the property from Office and Institutional (O&I-II) to 
General Industry (I-1). Consent Agenda Approval. Aycock/Broadaway (7 Ayes) 

 
ORDINANCE 2021-36 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE OF 
THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA CODE OF ORDINANCES” 

 
Setting Public Hearing - Contiguous Annexation Request – Tiffany Gardens Phase I (Located on 

the south side of Central Heights Rd. between N. Oak Forest Dr. and Thoroughfare Rd.) The proposed 
property for annexation consists of 8.63 acres. Public Hearing Scheduled.  The City Council, at their 
meeting on October 18, 2021, requested that the City Clerk examine the subject annexation petition for 
sufficiency.  The City Clerk has completed the examination as attached and has determined that the petition is 
sufficient.  Sufficiency indicates that property is described accurately within 1:10,000 feet and that all property 
owners have signed the petition. 

 
Pursuant to G. S. 160A-58.2, Council shall fix a date for public hearing on the annexation if the petition is 
considered sufficient by the City Clerk. 

 
The attached Notice of Public Hearing would schedule November 15, 2021 as the date for the public hearing.  A 
report prepared by the Planning Department, in conjunction with other City departments, will be submitted to the 
Council on that date.  

 
It was recommended that Council schedule a public hearing for the proposed contiguous annexation of Tiffany 
Gardens, Phase I property for November 15, 2021. Consent Agenda Approval. Aycock/Broadaway (7 Ayes) 

 
End of Consent Agenda. 
 
Items Requiring Individual Action.  
 
IT Staffing Presentation. Scott Williams, Information Technology Director shared the following 

presentation regarding IT Staffing needs.   
Request 

• Add three positions to the IT Department 
– Add one Administrative Assistant III Position (~$38K salary min/year) 
– Add two Computer Systems Administrator I Positions (~$51K salary min/year) 

• We are not asking for any additional money to make these changes (~$79K for half year with 
benefits this FY). 

• We have reviewed our telecommunications services over the past months and made changes by 
moving services to our IT Fiber Network, changing service providers and a few cancellations.   

• The funds budgeted for our current temporary position and savings we have found for the current 
fiscal year will cover the cost of the new positions. 

• We will request further positions in the next FY budget in order to move towards being proactive 
rather than reactive to technology needs of the City. 

 
Funding Current Year 
Salary Needed for Positions $79,684.75 
Temporary Employee Salary Available $10,920.00 
Savings in Telecommunications Services $69,637.97 
Total Available $80,557.97 
Balance Remaining $873.22 
 
Funding Next FY 
Telecommunications Budget Without Adjustments $322,499.26 



4 
 
 
 
 

New Projections After Adjustments $127,140.22 
Projected Reductions $195,359.04 
Cost of Positions $181,385.98 
Savings Remaining $13,973.06 
 
Councilmember Aycock made a motion to approve the additional positions for IT with no additional 

funding for this year, the motion was seconded by Councilmember Jones and unanimously carried. 
 
City Manager’s Report.  Tim Salmon shared the audit is expected to be complete by November 19 and 

financial statements available in early December. He will schedule a presentation with Dixon, Hughes and 
Goodman in December.  He also shared the State of the City and County will be at the Goldsboro Event Center 
on November 9, 2021.   

 
Mayor and Councilmembers’ Reports and Recommendation.   
 
Veterans Day Proclamation 2021. Councilmember Broadaway read the proclamation that Mayor David 

Ham proclaimed November 11, 2021 as VETERANS DAY in the City of Goldsboro, and urged all citizens to 
remember the service and sacrifice of our veterans who defend our freedom and preserve our way of life.   

 
National Native American Heritage Month Proclamation. Mayor David Ham proclaimed November 

2021 as NATIONAL NATIVE AMERICAN HERITAGE MONTH. 
 
Closed Session Held.  Upon motion of Councilmember Aycock, seconded by Councilmember Jones and 

unanimously carried, Council convened into Closed Session to discuss an economic development matter.   
 
Council came out of Closed Session and came back into Open Session.   
 
Councilmember Broadaway had no comment. 
 
Councilmember Matthews encouraged board members to check their emails and encouraged everyone to 

wear their mask as per the mask mandate.   
 
Councilmember Gaylor thanked everyone who has congratulated him on being part of the council and is 

looking forward to being part of the council.  
 
Councilmember Aycock shared comments that things said about him were unfounded and reminded 

everyone of the statement on the agenda concerning cell phones.      
 
Councilmember Jones thanked the schools that got involved in the red ribbon campaign, mentioned the 

anti-bullying campaign and the free over-the-counter medication giveaway at the First Presbyterian Church on 
November 5, 2021.     

 
Mayor Ham shared comments concerning the upcoming Veterans Day parade.  
 

The meeting adjourned at 8:17 p.m. 
 
       ___________________________ 
       David Ham   
       Mayor     
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       Laura Getz, MMC/NCCMC     
       City Clerk  



END TIME CRUSADERS FOR CHRIST MINISTRIES
1607A ROYALL AVE

GOLDSBORO, NC 27534

Item B



MISSION STATEMENT

To empower and uplift individuals of all walks of life by offering hope,
showing compassion, and spreading love throughout the community. 



About Us

We are “End Time Crusaders for Christ Ministries.” Warm Body Warm 
Soul, a nonprofit organization was birthed from this ministry. We have 
witnessed families and individuals throughout our community, 
homelessness, hunger, drug addiction, mental illness, and those that 
have fell upon hard times. Our passion is to “Help the helpless help 
themselves.” We want to effectively create growth and a positive 
change in our communities by partnering with those that share our 
passion, vision, and concern. We understand and believe that 
“Together Everyone Accomplishes More!”  



Warm Body Warm Soul Help Center 
Services

• F.E.D. (Feed, Empower, Deliver)
• Wash With Care Laundry
• Dress My Way Clothing Center/Toiletries/Blankets/Sleeping Bags
• Housing and Job Resources



F.E.D. (Feed, Empower, Deliver)
Pre-packed lunches served Mon., Wed., & Fri. (12:00 p.m.-1:00 p.m.)

We deliver meals to the homeless



Wash With Care Laundry
Cards are distributed 1st and 3rd Thursdays

Individuals are able to wash and dry their clothes



Toiletries, blankets, and sleeping bags are 
available upon the individuals’ needs.



Dress My Way Clothing Center
Individuals can choose what they need from the clothing center



Housing and Job Resources
We assist in searching for jobs, emergency shelters, and housing



2021 Events
The Veteran Stand Down 2021
Serving Veterans in need 

Back To School Drive/National Senior 
Citizens Day/Fish Fry/Clothing Giveaway 



Our Partners

• Habitat for Humanity
• United Way
• Veteran’s Services of the Carolinas
• American Red Cross
• NC Works Career Center
• Wayne Uplift Domestic Violence
• 4Day Movement
• Goldsboro Police Department
• Wash House
• East Point Mental Health



Thank You!!



D









E





CASHWELL DR

ABINGTON PL
OV

ER
BR

OO
K

RD
HILLDALE

LN

PINE
NEEDLES

RD

PINE
RIDGE

LN

RIDGEWOOD DR

0 200 400100 Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

CASE NO:
REQUEST:
APPLICANT:
OWNER:
LOCATION:

SPECIAL USE REQUEST;

SU-11-21 SANDRA H. BELL
SPECIAL USE PERMIT

REQUEST: THE CONSTRUCTION OF A 12FT BY 20FT ACCESSORY DWELLING

SU-11-2021
THE CONSTRUCTION OF A 12FT BY 20FT ACCESSORY DWELLING
SANDRA H. BELL
SANDRA H. BELL
127 OVERBROOK RD

28
2'

181.54'

68.7
1'

169.11'

55.68'

57
.98

'

61'



F









GATEWAY

DR

CHALLE
N 

CT

0 300 600150 Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

CASE NO:
REQUEST:
APPLICANT:
OWNER:
LOCATION:

SPECIAL USE REQUEST;

SU-12-21 WAYNE COUNTY PROJECT SHELL
 SPECIAL USE PERMIT

REQUEST: OPERATION OF A CHEMICAL MANUFACTURING FACILITY

SU-12-2021
OPERATION OF A CHEMICAL MANUFACTURING FACILITY
HOSOKAWA CUSTOM PROCESSING SERVICES, LLC.
COUNTY OF WAYNE
400 CHALLEN COURT

709
.14

' 1,156.52'

954.94'

769.77'

57.32'







G



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021 -   

 
AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING CERTAIN CONTIGUOUS REAL PROPERTY 

TO THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 
 

 WHEREAS, after notice duly given in compliance with the pertinent provisions of 
Chapter 160A-31 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, a public hearing was held 
before the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, at a regular meeting 
held in the City Hall in Goldsboro on November 15, 2021 relative to the annexation of 
the contiguous real property hereinafter described to the City of Goldsboro; and 
 
 WHEREAS, at said public hearing all persons owning property in the area 
proposed to be annexed who alleged error in the Petition for Annexation, as well as 
residents of the City of Goldsboro who question the necessity for annexation, were 
given an opportunity to be heard along with proponents of such annexation; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after the completion of said public hearing, the City Council has 
determined that the Petition for Annexation meets the requirements of said Section 31 
of Chapter 160A of the General Statutes of North Carolina, and has further determined, 
after due and careful deliberation, that it is for the best interest of the City of Goldsboro 
and its citizens that the contiguous real property proposed to be annexed be annexed to 
the City of Goldsboro; and 
 
 WHEREAS, as a result of said annexation, it is necessary to modify the 
boundaries of the six (6) single-member electoral districts of the City of Goldsboro as 
shown on a map entitled "Official Election District Boundaries" adopted July 5, 2011 and 
to amend said map as hereinafter set forth; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds it to be in the best interests of the City of 
Goldsboro to modify the boundaries of the electoral district in order to afford the 
citizens of the annexed area full participation in the electoral process of the City of 
Goldsboro and in order to comply with State and Federal law. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina, that the following described contiguous real property be and the same is 
hereby annexed to the City of Goldsboro: 
 
Tiffany Gardens, Phase I Annexation 
Commencing at a point in the northerly line of a tract described in a deed to Southeast Investors 
Group. LLC. recorded in Deed Book 1800 at Page 184 in the Wayne County Registry. Said point 
being the common corner between Lot 25 and Lot 26 of the JL Butler Division as shown on a map 
recorded in Plat Book 8 at Page 75 in the Wayne County Registry and being the POINT OF 
BEGINNING. Thence, along and with the southerly line of said Lot 25 and the northerly line of 
said Southeast Investors Group. LLC, South 86 degrees 39 minutes 05 seconds East a distance 



Page 2 of 2 
 

of 37.24 feet to a point. Thence, a new line, South 21 degrees 34 minutes 06 seconds East a 
distance of 327.10 feet to a point. Thence South 35 degrees 02 minutes 41 seconds West a 
distance of 358.29 feet to a point. Thence North 64 degrees 24 minutes 23 seconds West a 
distance of 761.02 feet to a point. Thence North 25 degrees 35 minutes 37 seconds East a 
distance of 396.71 feet to a point in a southerly line of a foresaid JL Butler Division. Thence, with 
said Butler lines, South 77 degrees 32 minutes 14 seconds East a distance of 201.91 feet to a 
point. Thence South 77 degrees 32 minutes 14 seconds East a distance of 137.45 feet to a point. 
Thence South 86 degrees 39 minutes 05 seconds East a distance of 232.32 feet to the POINT 
OF BEGINNING. The above described parcel contains 8.63 acres (375843 sq. ft.) and is a 
portion of Parcel 1 and Parcel 2 described in Deed Book 1800 at Page 184 in the Wayne County 
Registry. 
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED THAT: 

1. The City of Goldsboro will provide fire and police protection to the property; 
 

2. The developer of the property will agree to be responsible for all costs 
associated with extending City water and sewer lines to serve the  property; 

 
3. The annexed area herein above identified be added to and become a part of 

Electoral District 2;  
 

4. The boundaries of the six single-member electoral districts shall be modified and 
changed as shown on a map entitled "Official Election District Boundaries Map" 
adopted July 5, 2011;  
 

5. The Director of Planning and Community Development is directed to prepare an 
official map showing the district boundaries and to file a copy of the official map 
in the Office of the City Clerk as required by G. S. 160A-22 and G. S. 160A-23.  
Further, the City Clerk shall forward a copy of the official map to the Wayne 
County Board of Elections;  
 

6. The effective date of annexation for the property under consideration is 
November 15, 2021; and 

 
 
Adopted this  _  day of      , 2021. 
 
 

___________________________ 
 Mayor  

Attested by: 
 
______________________ 
City Clerk  
 













H



RESOLUTION NO. 2021- _____ 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AWARD AND FINAL SALE OF REAL PROPERTY 

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro and County of Wayne jointly own certain real property at 412 East 
Walnut Street (Pin #3509057190); and  

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 160A-269 permits the city to sell real property by upset bid, 
after receipt of an offer for the property; and 

WHEREAS, the City has received an upset bid offer to purchase the property described above, in the 
amount of $9,500.00 (Nine Thousand Five Hundred Dollars and no/100) submitted by Oliver Design 
Group, LLC (Offeror); and 

WHEREAS, there were no other upset bids received in the subsequent upset bid period; and 

WHEREAS, Offeror has paid the required five percent (5%) deposit on his/her offer in the amount of 
$475.50 (Four Hundred Seventy Five Dollars and 50/100). 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, 
that: 

1) The City Council declares this property as surplus.
2) The City Council authorizes the sale of the property described above through North Carolina General

Statute  § 160A-269.
3) The City Council accepts the final upset bid offer as stated.
4) City officials shall seek approval of the final sale from the Wayne County Board of Commissioners.
5) City Council further authorizes and empowers City officials to execute the instruments necessary to

convey the property to the Offeror after concurrence from the Wayne County Board of Commissioners.
6) The City reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time before ownership is transferred

and recorded.
7) The terms of the final sale are:

a) Buyer must pay with cash at the time of closing.
b) Buyer must pay closing costs.

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this _________________ day of 
___________________, 2021. 

_____________________________ 
Mayor 

Attest: _________________________ 
City Clerk 



OLIVER DESIGN GROUP,  LLC
102 Whitfield Drive

Goldsboro NC 27530

919- 344-7964

October 11, 2021

Catherine F. Gwynn

City of Goldsboro Finance Director
200 North Center St

Goldsboro, NC 27530

REF: Upset Bid Offer

Mrs. Gwynn,

I am writing to submit my upset bid offer for property owned by the City of Goldsboro. The
property is located at 412 East Walnut St. and the parcels' tax ID# 12- 3509- 05- 7190.

I am offerin s i 1. v itapset bid offer amount to the current offer for the property. I am
including the required 5% deposit along with my upset offer.

Thank you in consideration in this matter and I look forward to hearing from you soon.

ncerely

41111• • ' . 

Oliver Jr.

President



G t7ii LDSBO
BE MORE DO MORE SEYMOUR

P. O. Drawer A

Goldsboro, NC 27533-9701

7! 1-71 OCT  !

r!ITY OF
triveAk5L4 ko      \?_:1 INCE

C.0)A:14, LAA-k--F jo (-11N)      OJ72-   

vtqs700- kpse-r'   CR-vo

b,„40,   o..,..  .r27,ge.  •       

g_ E kivAtAuT ST-Mt
111



I

Valid Money Order includes. 1. Heat sensitive, red stop sign AND.2. Contains a True Watermark l,ORL Upto light to view.
IIITEMATIONAL- MONEY OrIOER as- Ins

MoneyGram.       

10; 11/ 2021
To Validate: Touch the stop sign,

then watch it fade and reappear20917618n:59
  MOBILE DEPOSIT PROHIBITED 1' I L H E Y ORDER
u PAY TO THE
w ORDER OF:/      ///':,•.. 11..i:    s f. 1.,  ..„...:,;::,,_. a t'   

0 '
la o

PAGAR A LA .- s 6 J„       _.: O C  ,/   ,° I 1--   ':€,!'-  f11':' i
r ORDEN DE:      •'' I J.i'    '    U is I.::' r;m ` d :•%  :..  ..
m IMPORTANT• SEE BACK BEFORE CASHING W C_E I, I E N T y—C I L•I E  * a civ

1
0

rwrua     `   w'''"°
e--N,t 4LMCpca C7 l L L H R S l'  =E T_•

6 - oneVOL.

THIS DOCUME TCONTAINS ATRU WATERMA• K. HOLD VO LIGHT TO:VIEW 1.

OFFICIAL CHECK"       •';
68=236/ 514

ISSUING BRANCH 6061201- GOLDSBORO- MAIN
i DATE September 13, 2021
i o

PAY TO THE

ORDER OF
CITY OF GOLDSBORO 1. 50. 00 el

li
One Hundred Fifty and 00/ 100ths Dollars  '

l 1
I BB& 1 I?' t fry"  t eme.
I ME r roma xca( ma,      AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

STATE EMPLOYEES' CREDIT UNION CASHIER'S CHECK 156581 I
00002 Goldsboro- Wcst Ash Street

I

I DATE: August 12, 2021

I PAY 66-7704, 2531

TO THE s

ORRDERDER OF CITY OF GOLDSBORO

8
90.00

1    ****    NINETY DOLLARS AND 00 CENTS L

1
li

I VOID AFTER IS0 DAYS

j REMITTER: COI]IIIE D OLIVER
l 1-  /,- 11 N

MEMO: OLIVER DESIGN GROUP LLC

lAUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

THIS DOC RENT CONTAINS A TRUE'. ATERPIAHK- HOLD TO LIGNYTOVIEW'-      T-

1 rOFFICIAL CHECK  '       1003711166
6& 236/514

ISSUING BRANCH 6061201- GOLDSBORO- MAIN

t!,

DATE June 30, 2021 a

PAY TO THE • CITY OF GOLDSBORO 8
I ORDER OF I 160. 50

I One Hundred Sixty and 50/ 100thsDollars

LL
aww ea S. ane rums nv/`. 4APr AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

OLIVER DESIGN GROUP LLC
u

L_ MEMO/ RUR011ASE8_  

    





7/6/2021 Appraisal Card

realestate.waynegov.com/ITSNet/AppraisalCard.aspx?idP=1838283&Action=Auto 1/1

WAYNE COUNTY 7/6/2021 2:47:09 PM
CITY OF GOLDSBORO   WAYNE COUNTY Return/Appeal Notes:   3509057190
412 E WALNUT ST UNIQ ID 50440
75254500 ID NO: 12000002001013A

CITY - GOLDSBORO (100), COUNTYWIDE ADVALOREM TAX (100) CARD NO. 1 of 1
Reval Year: 2019 Tax Year: 2021 E WALNUT ST 1.000 LT SRC= 
Appraised by 60 on 01502 DOWNTOWN TW-12 C-01 EX-2AT- LAST ACTION 20181205
CONSTRUCTION DETAIL MARKET VALUE DEPRECIATION CORRELATION OF VALUE

TOTAL POINT VALUE
BUILDING ADJUSTMENTS
TOTAL ADJUSTMENT
FACTOR
TOTAL QUALITY INDEX

USE MOD
Eff.
Area QUAL

BASE
RATE RCN EYB AYB CREDENCE TO

01 00 % GOOD  DEPR. BUILDING VALUE - CARD 0

TYPE: SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL

STORIES:  

DEPR. OB/XF VALUE - CARD 0
MARKET LAND VALUE - CARD 6,210
TOTAL MARKET VALUE - CARD 6,210
TOTAL APPRAISED VALUE - CARD 6,210
TOTAL APPRAISED VALUE - PARCEL 6,210
TOTAL PRESENT USE VALUE - PARCEL 0
TOTAL VALUE DEFERRED - PARCEL 0
TOTAL TAXABLE VALUE - PARCEL 6,210

PRIOR
BUILDING VALUE 54,420
OBXF VALUE 600
LAND VALUE 6,210
PRESENT USE VALUE 0
DEFERRED VALUE 0
TOTAL VALUE 61,230

PERMIT
CODE DATE NOTE NUMBER AMOUNT

ROUT: WTRSHD:
SALES DATA

OFF.
RECORD DATE DEED

TYPE Q/UV/I
INDICATE SALES

PRICEBOOK PAGE MOYR
03406 0323 11 2018 WD C V 0
02695 0759 4 2009 WD U I 30000
02664 0520 10 2008 WD U I 0
01448 0635 10 1994 WD U I 34500
01123 0764 2 1986 WD U I 0
01113 0287 11 1985 U I 23000

HEATED AREA  
NOTES

P4-09 RENOV.FROM APTS TO SINGLE FAM FOR 2012. 1/10
PARTIAL RENOV. DEMO11-17. 2/18 CONDEMNED.

SUBAREA

TYPE
GS

AREA %
RPL
CS

FIREPLACE
SUBAREA
TOTALS

CODE QUALITY DESCRIPTION LTH WTH UNITS
UNIT
PRICE

ORIG %
COND BLDG# L/B

SIZE
FACT AYB EYB

ANN DEP
RATE OVR

%
COND

OB/XF DEPR.
VALUE

TOTAL OB/XF VALUE 0

BUILDING DIMENSIONS 
LAND INFORMATION

HIGHEST AND
BEST USE

USE
CODE

LOCAL
ZONING

FRON
TAGE DEPTH

DEPTH /
SIZE

LND
MOD

COND
FACT

OTHER ADJUSTMENTS
AND NOTES 
  RF   AC   LC  TO  OT

ROAD
TYPE

LAND UNIT
PRICE

TOTAL
LAND
UNITS

UNT
TYP

TOTAL
ADJST

ADJUSTED
UNIT PRICE

LAND
VALUE

LAND
NOTES

0100 0100 R-9 80 135 0.9700 2 1.0000 80.00 80.000 FF 0.970 77.60 6208 

TOTAL MARKET LAND DATA 6,210  
TOTAL PRESENT USE DATA



I



RESOLUTION NO. 2021- _____ 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SALE OF SURPLUS 
REAL PROPERTY UNDER NCGS § 160A-269 

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro and County of Wayne jointly own certain property, 400 and 402 Miller 
Avenue (NC Pin #2599459295 and 2599459159); and  

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 160A-269 permits the city to sell property by upset bid, after receipt 
of an offer for the property; and 

WHEREAS, the County of Wayne has conducted the upset bid process and approved the sale at the October 5, 
2021 Board meeting; and 

WHEREAS, the County has requested concurrence from the City on the sale for the winning offer in the amount of 
$6,000.00 (Six Thousand Dollars and no/100)  from Bogan Properties, LLC. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1) The City Council declares this property as surplus.
2) The City Council authorizes the sale of the property described above through North Carolina General Statute

§160A-269.
3) City Council further authorizes and empowers City officials to execute the instruments necessary to convey the

property to the Offeror.
4) The City reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time before ownership is transferred and

recorded.

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this       _____________ 
day of                                                                     , 2021. 

___________________________ 
Mayor  

Attested by: 

______________________ 
City Clerk   



















J

























City of Goldsboro  
Departmental Monthly Reports 

October 2021 

1. Community Relations
2. Downtown Development
3. Engineering
4. Finance
5. Fire
6. Human Resources
7. Information Technology
8. Inspections
9. Paramount Theater-GEC

10. Parks and Recreation
11. Planning
12. Police
13. Public Utilities
14. Public Works
15. Travel and Tourism



 

 
1 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT 
October 2021 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Development & Relations Director 
Date Prepared:  October 29, 2021 
 
• The Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities (MCPD) held its annual awards ceremony in place of its regular 

monthly meeting on October 21, 2021.  The MCPD Education Subcommittee met in-person on October 12, 2021.   
 

• On October 12, 2021, the Commission on Community Relations and Development (CCRD) met for the regular 
monthly meeting.  During this meeting, members planned to form a subcommittee for the upcoming MLK 
celebration.  The first meeting is scheduled for November 2, 2021. 
 

• GYC provided community service to the O’Berry Foundation for its annual golf scholarship tournament at Lane Tree 
Country Club on October 1, 2021.  GYC held its first regular meeting on October 6, 2021.  The group has taken on a 
‘Bags for Blankets’ project and is currently collecting plastic bags that will be later made into blankets for the 
homeless.  This initiative was presented to GYC by Chair Vismitha Taneti.  State Youth Council (SYC) held its annual 
Service Learning Conference on October 9, 2021.  Staff attended the virtual conference. 

 
• Community Relations Activities: Staff attended the regular meeting of the Wayne County JCPC on October 8, 2021 

at the Chamber of Commerce.  Staff attended a virtual CALM Board meeting on October 19, 2021 and regular 
monthly meeting on October 26, 2021. Staff was invited and attend Community Supporting School’s Teen 
Entrepreneur ‘Shark Tank’ event on October 26, 2021 at the Chamber of Commerce.  Staff attended a Citizens 
Academy Planning meeting on October 27, 2021. Staff attended the virtual Racial Equity Training on October 28, 
2021.   

 
• Community Relations department monthly staff meeting was held on October 7, 2021.   

 
• Community Development Activities: Staff met with City Attorney and Asst. City Manager to discuss Homebuyer 

Assistance Program’s policies and legal documents on October 4, 2021.   Staff attended a virtual webinar offered by 
HUD on HOME-ARP on October 4th and October 6th.  By request, Staff met with Mr. Thomas Rice & Jacqueline Kannon 
to discuss funding for homelessness initiative on October 25, 2021.  Staff engaged in 2 phone & 2 virtual consults 
with HUD Representative for the month of October.   Staff engaged in 3 phone consults with NCHFA Case Manager 
during the month of October. 

 
• The Department received two (2) housing complaints and ten (10) requests for assistance for the month of October. 

*Please refer to Community Relations Addendum for the detailed summary.   
 

2021 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 0 4 2 0 4 5 1 8 9 2 0 0 4 
Consumer & Other 2 8 21 10 12 9 12 10 16 10 0 0 11 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

1 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT Addendum 
October 2021 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Development & Relations Director 
Date Prepared:  October 29, 2021 
 
 
Complaints/Grievances 
Date        Name          Nature of Grievance           Resolution 

10-4-21 Not disclosed Housing 
complaint/Water 
disconnected 

Referred to 4 Day 
Movement/Water 
restored/Complaint 
filed against landlord 

10-22-21 Not disclosed Housing/Heat not 
working properly 

Referred to 
HACG/Resolved 

 
 
Assistance with Resources 
 
Date        Name          Resource Requested            Resolution 

10-4-21 Not disclosed Home repair Notified of upcoming 
CDBG-Rehab.  

10-6-21 Not disclosed Homeless Provided resource list 
10-7-21 Not disclosed Rent assistance Provided resource list 
10-12-21 Not disclosed Home repair Notified of upcoming 

CDBG-Rehab. 
10-13-21 Not disclosed Home repair Notified of upcoming 

CDBG-Rehab. 
10-15-21 Not disclosed Loose limbs in yard Referred to Public 

Works 
10-15-21 Not disclosed Home repair Notified of upcoming 

CDBG-Rehab. 
10-19-21 Not disclosed Home repair Notified of upcoming 

CDBG-Rehab. 
10-19-21 Not disclosed Home repair Notified of upcoming 

CDBG-Rehab. 
10-21-21 Not disclosed Homebuyer Assistance Application provided 

 



1 

Downtown Development Department 
October 2021 Monthly Report 
Prepared By: Robin Gartland 
Date Prepared: November 8, 2021 
 Current Downtown Development Office Projects Staff Worked On Over the Month Include:  

• Met with (or conversed by email/phone) 3 potential new property acquisition projects/persons and/or business 
interests regarding downtown. 

• Over the past month, staff visited downtown businesses 15 different times.   
• GWTA Concourse Roof Addition Grant Agreement Update. 
• Preparing for DGDC office relocation and renovation. 
• Met with IT at future DGDC office location to discuss IT needs for downtown staff. 

Downtown Development Office Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:           

• Staff will continue to work with David Gall to facilitate administrative needs of the GWTA Concourse Roof 
Addition bid process. 

• Downtown Merchants Association Work Plan Development in process. 

• Staff is still working on completing an RFP, marketing the 400 block of S. Center Street for residential, 
medium density, infill development. Discussing economic development planning with NC Department 
of Commerce to determine next steps in creating a plan. 

• Fall Movie Series- Partnered with Canvas Church to provide Screen & Equipment.  The last showing is 
Thursday Nov. 11th.  Free Popcorn and Snow Cones provided by Canvas Church! 

• Continued preparation for DGDC office relocation. 
• Final Public Art Installation was completed on October 15th.  

DGDC Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:  
• Facilitated and attended the following monthly meetings: DGDC Board Meeting , DGDC Executive Committee 

Meeting ,DGDC Design, DGDC EV, DGDC Merchants Committee Meeting, and DGDC Promotions Committee 
Meeting.  All Board and Committee Meetings were replaced this month by the DGDC Annual Retreat. 

• Staff working with DGMA, as new branch of the DGDC  to develop a work plan, in cohesion with the DGDC’s 
work plan. 

• The Downtown Annual Awards Dinner took place downtown at the HUB, on October 8th. 
• The DGDC Annual Retreat was held October 26 & 27, at the Goldsboro Event Center. 

Upcoming Events/Activities:  
• LFNC Planning, including next steps for economic development plan & RFP development for 400 block of S. 

Center. 
• Will work with IT in redesigning and refreshing the DGDC Website in the next 6 months. 
• Rehab development project. 
• The popular Downtown Drive-In Series will be held again this year at the field across from the HUB.  There will 

be two showings, December 2 and December 16 starting at 6:00pm.  More info to follow. 
• Tuffano’s Wine Bar to close next month. 

Businesses Opening/Properties Purchased  
Other 

• Downtown Goldsboro’s Facebook page followers/likes grew from 12,454 to 12,549 in the month of October. 



 

 
 

1 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
October 2021 
Prepared by:  Guy M. Anderson, P. E.                     
Date Prepared:  11-05-21 
              
Stoney Creek Greenway   

• The greenway extends from Royall Avenue to Quail Park along Stoney Creek, approximately 1,600 
linear feet; 

• Staff submitted final plans and specifications for NCDOT approval. 
 

Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation 
• Subcontractors are onsite finishing up services and punch list work detailed by McKim & Creed; 
• Contractor is working on punch list items. 

 
2019 Infrastructure Recovery (Golden Leaf Foundation)  

• This project consists of sewer rehabilitation and storm drainage improvements in various areas; 
• Project is complete and final payment request submitted to Finance Department. 

 
2021 Street Resurfacing 

• City Council awarded contract to Barnhill Contracting on May 17, 2021 for $1,653,500; 
• The resurfacing project is 60% complete; 
• Contract completion date is March 8, 2022. 

 
2017 Wastewater System Improvements – FB2020-002  

• The project consists of sewer rehabilitation along North Carolina Street from Holly Street to Ash 
Street, sewer rehabilitation along the Big Ditch Outfall from George Street south to Crump Street; 
and sewer rehabilitation of a 200-foot segment from the Little River Outfall into old Cherry Hospital 
campus; 

• Project is 98% complete; 
• Two more services on Carolina Street and punch list items remain to be completed. 

 
2017 Water System Improvements 

• This project consists of creating a separate pressure zone in the New Hope area by installing a 
booster pump station at the New Hope Water Tank and a couple of pressure reducing valves at the 
extreme ends of the new pressure zone; 

• Design plans and specifications anticipated for approval by NCDEQ in November 2021.  
 

Ash Street/Alabama Avenue Sidewalk  
• This project consists of installing sidewalk from the right-of-way of NC Railroad along Ash Street to 

Alabama Street then down Alabama Street to Oak Street; 
• Construction plans are 90% complete; 
• This project is temporarily on hold. 

 



2 

2019 Water Improvements Project 
• The Wooten Company engineering agreement provides services for preliminary engineering report 

and environmental report for substandard City of Goldsboro water lines; 
• PER/EID Report submitted to DWI for review and approval. 

 
Little/Big Cherry Pump Station Relocation and Improvement 

• WithersRavenel engineering agreement provides services for project management, engineering 
report and environmental information documentation for Little/Big Cherry Pump Station; 

• PER/EID Report due to DWI by October 1, 2021; 
• A revision is required and will be submitted at a later date. 

 
Stormwater Control Measure (SCMs) Inspections   

• Approximately 308 SCMs have been approved and 258 SCMs have been constructed to date; 
• Construction Inspector completed and received SCM Certification in October; 
• Stormwater Control Measure Inspections will resume starting January 2022. 

 



 

 
 

1 

FINANCE   
OCTOBER 2021 
Prepared By: Andrea Thompson 
Date Prepared: November 8, 2021 
 

 

FY 20-21
Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

Revenues September-20 Adjusted Budget September-21 Collected
General Fund 5,416,141$      45,835,802$        7,508,238$      16.38%
Utility Fund 4,437,232        20,739,218          5,693,386        27.45%
Downtown District Fund 25,382             95,174                 25,553             26.85%
Occupancy Tax Fund 249,854           1,139,668            257,994           22.64%
Stormwater Fund 376,001           1,576,200            678,097           43.02%
     Total 10,504,610$    69,386,062$        14,163,268$    20.41%

Expenditures
General Fund 9,409,905$      45,835,802$        10,658,615$    23.25%
Utility Fund 3,546,487        20,739,218 2,775,109 13.38%
Downtown District Fund 1,312               95,174 25,539             26.83%
Occupancy Tax Fund 73,982             1,139,668 109,922 9.65%
Stormwater Fund 229,718           1,576,200 461,745 29.29%
     Total 13,261,404$    69,386,062$        14,030,929$    20.22%

FY 20-21
Revenues Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

September-20 Adjusted Budget September-21 Collected
Property/Occupancy Taxes 3,019,590$      18,876,693$        3,414,394$      18.09%
Charges for Services 5,612,054        23,836,557          6,688,759        28.06%
Revenue Other Agencies 475,863           19,483,742          805,844           4.14%
Other Revenues 635,364           3,282,836            2,452,311        74.70%
Fund Balance -                   698,394               -                   0.00%
Shared Services 761,739           3,207,840            801,960           25.00%
     Total 10,504,610$    69,386,062$        14,163,268$    20.41%

Expenditures
Labor 6,917,727$      32,064,318$        6,867,795$      21.42%
Non-Labor 6,343,677        37,321,744          7,163,134        19.19%
     Total 13,261,404$    69,386,062$        14,030,929$    20.22%

FY 20-21 Actual Total 
Collections Actual September-21 Collected F-YTD

Debt Setoff 44,690$           400$                     3,107$             
Surplus 58,361$           -$                      -$                 

FY 21-22

MAJOR CATEGORIES
FY 21-22

SELECTED OTHER INFORMATION



 

 
 
 
 

1 

2021 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg.

Total Incidents: 234 173 227 214 251 240 227 229 240 244 228

Structure Fires: 6 4 6 4 3 3 3 5 6 2 4

EMS Calls: 89 68 87 83 106 106 84 104 86 86 90

Vehicle  Accidents: 36 30 34 35 35 40 33 33 33 40 35

Fire Alarms: 49 31 41 40 42 41 54 45 56 52 45

O ther: 54 40 59 52 65 50 53 42 59 64 54

Training Hours: 3006 3143 3010 2730 2029 1877 1633 1833 1596 1914 2277

Safety Car Seat Checks: 1 0 1 0 1 6 3 3 2 4 2

Inspections: 118 149 215 167 179 237 193 191 177 157 178

2020 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg.

Total Incidents: 198 187 166 111 118 208 213 213 233 203 204 225 190

Structure Fires: 10 4 2 1 4 4 2 2 6 2 1 3 3

EMS Calls: 70 81 73 7 21 74 89 68 80 88 76 88 68

Vehicle  Accidents: 35 22 26 25 26 29 27 42 34 34 33 35 31

Fire Alarms: 46 29 26 38 33 46 45 49 69 41 46 39 42

O ther: 37 51 39 40 34 55 50 52 44 38 48 60 46

Training Hours: 2969 3061 3626 2426 2289 2254 2351 2244 2522 2514 2032 1962 2521

Safety Car Seat Checks: 3 9 2 0 2 1 0 0 0 0 2 0 2

Inspections: 129 119 143 73 108 134 151 108 119 140 124 132 123

FIRE DEPARTMENT 
October 2021 
Prepared By: Ron Stempien 
Date Prepared: November 8, 2021 

 The cause of fire incidents was determined 100% of the time. 0% of fire incidents were 
classified as undetermined or still under investigation.  
 

 The average response time of first arriving unit was 4:29.  
 

 The full response within 8 minutes occurred 94.8% of all calls.  
 

 72.8% of Inspection Violations were cleared within 90 days.  
 

 There were 0 Civilian injuries, 0 Civilian deaths, 0 Fire Service injuries, and 0 Fire Service 
deaths.  

 
 The American Red Cross assisted 1 family due to displacement because of fire damage.  

 
 Fire prevention and community service activities included: Several Preschool and 

Elementary School Truck Displays and Station Tours for Fire Prevention Month (Theme: 
“Learn the Sounds of Fire Safety”), Breast Cancer T-shirt Fundraiser, Car Seat Safety Checks 
with Safe Kids of Wayne County, Trunk or Treat Truck Displays, and Birthday Ride-by 
Celebrations. 483 Adults and 1,095 Children received fire prevention education.  

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Note: Other Fire Calls includes Good Intent Calls, Bomb Scares, Vehicle Fires, Cooking Fires, False Alarms, Assist GPD, Service Calls, 
Haz-Mat Calls, Grass Fires and Unauthorized Burning. 

 



1 

HUMAN RESOURCES   
October 2021  
Date Prepared: November 3, 2021    
 
Human Resources  

• Supervisors are completing annual evaluations. As of October 31, 206 evaluations were completed. 
• The annual benchmarking survey for the NC League of Municipalities was completed October 15. 
• HR staff assisted Public Utilities with interviews October 21, 22, 25.  
• Pierce representatives were on site October 4-15 to conduct 2022 Open Enrollment for 

supplemental benefits. Open enrollment for the NC State Health Plan (medical benefits) started 
October 11 and ended October 29. Participation rate was 100% as of October 29 for both options.  

 
Safety   

• Monthly fire extinguisher and defibrillator inspections.  
• October 12 – Safety and Accident Review Committee Meeting. Three vehicle accident cases 

reviewed; all employees received points.   
• October 12 – Attended the Wayne County Chamber of Commerce Safety Awards Luncheon. The 

City of Goldsboro received 24 awards based on safety performance in 2020. 
• October 13 – Investigated a minor motor vehicle accident involving a fire engine at City Gas 

pumps.  
• October 13 – Completed all final OSHA paperwork from visit in September. 
• Worked with HR Benefits Consultant to schedule virtual training in November.   
• October 18 – Investigated motor vehicle accident involving Public Works vehicle.  
• FIT testing at Public Works.  
• October 19 – Meeting with employee concerning vehicle accident safety points he received.  
• October 25 – Teleconference call with OSHA representative, Jiles Manning, concerning repairs 

found during September visit at Public Works.  
• October 26 – Assisted Mark Blizzard with flu vaccines at Police Department.  
• October 29 – OSHA visit at Public Works/Herman Park Center/Compost Facility to confirm repairs 

for the September visit. 
• October 29 – Met with Rod Pace at Compost concerning the repairs and clean up from Fire in 

September. 
• Field Safety with private contractors and City crews.  

 
Occupational Health  
The Occupational Health Nurse continues to provide guidance regarding CDC guidelines and COVID 
protocols. There were 165 clinic visits this month. This month’s health beat was distribution of flu shots. 
Flu shots were available on four different occasions at Fire/Police Complex and Public Works. No random 
drug screens or post-accident drug screens this month.  The City hosted a blood drive at Public Works on 
September 7. Flu shots were administered at City Hall on September 27 and will continue throughout 
October.   
 
 



2 

MONTHLY STATISTICS 

2021 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 
Total 
Employment 

569 566 562 562 557 554 550 550 544 537   555 

Vacancies  12 8 26 21 18 19 21 26 23 22   19 
Applications 183 119 203 245 267 299 233 150 164 204   207 

Applicant 
Notices 

214 203 167 66 71 177 94 140 106 196   143 

New Hires  8 2 1 3 4 3 2 8 1 3   4 
Resignations 1 2 3 3 6 6 7 8 6 8   5 
Retirements  0 3 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 2   1.00% 
Terminations  0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 0   .30% 
Turnover 
Rate  

.18% .88% .89% .53% 1.44% 1.08% 1.09% 1.45 1.10 1.49   1.01% 

Vehicle 
Accidents 

2 5 2 7 3 1 3 1 0 3   3 

Workers’ 
Compensation 

0 4 2 3 5 4 3 0 0 0   3 

FFCRA Leave  41 5 5 3 5 5 2 1 20 9   10 
Telework 27  28 25 23 13 12 11 11 11 11   17 

 

2020 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Total 
Employment 

573  573 575 574 573 571 568 565 561 561 560 562 568 

Vacancies  21 23 28 16 12 13 12 13 19 12 9 18 17 
Applications 480 367 208 158 73 124 227 225 262 177 44 278 213 

Applicant 
Notices 

277 295 110 259 117 384 106 94 122 111 135 140 183 
 

New Hires      9 6 5 3 1 3 3 4 2 5 3 7 4 
Resignations 1 3 2 4 1 5 3 6 4 4 1 1 3 
Retirements  4 2 1 0 1 0 3 1 1 1 1 4 2 
Terminations  0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 2 0 .36 
Turnover 
Rate  

.87% .87% .52% .70% .35% .88% 1.06% 1.24% .89% .89% .36% .89% 0.79% 

Vehicle 
Accidents 

    4 0 2 5 5 2 0 0 2 0 0 1 2 

Workers’ 
Compensation 

    0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0.25 

FFCRA Leave    0 10 6 20 20 11 17 13 6 31 13 

Telework   37 39 35 32 32 32 33 24 19 25 31 

 
Note: Hiring and separation statistics (resignations, retirements, and terminations) represent full-time and permanent 
part-time personnel.  



 

 
 

1 

Information Technology  
October 2021 
Prepared By: Scott Williams 
Date Prepared: November 12, 2021 
 

• Completed Banner Upgrade for Production Environment. 
• Updated voting system for Employee Recognition. 
• Resolved issues with QS1 logins. 
• Completed setup for Mayor’s Internet connection. 
• Replaced TV at FS 1 (Warranty Claim). 
• Attended training on Nutanix. 
• Staff attended annual NCLGISA Conference; Goldsboro ran one session of training/discussion. 
• Relocated staff to allow for better social distancing/workspace. 
• Completed two projects for wireless access points and cameras.  
• Replaced Storm Water PCs; Pending Network Connections. 
• Resolved CSS error in Intranet and external web sites. 
• Corrected Golf Cart Permit Application Error.  
• Configured three connections for modem installs at lift stations. 
• Completed USB Drive blocks for city devices. 
• Configured and installed file transfer stations in various departments to allow more secure 

transfer of exiting USB data. 
• Configured Kiosk controls for DGDC to operate The Hub Kiosk. 
• Completed firewall repair/prepared for next firmware updates. 

 
2021 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

562 564 634 468 473 500 530 526 374 439   507 5070 

Tickets 
Closed 

447 615 612 436 528 571 490 547 384 388   502 5018 

Open  
Tickets 

473 422 444 476 421 350 390 369 359 410 
 

  411  

 
 

2020 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

551 656 595 618 448 578 641 533 495 532 457 414 555 
 

6,518 
 

Tickets 
Closed 

524 684 560 680 425 632 705 502 447 529 427 529 556 
 

6,644 

Open  
Tickets 

511 483 518 456 479 425 361 392 440 443 473 358 445  

 



 

 
 

1 

INSPECTIONS 
Oct 2021 
Prepared By: Allen Anderson, Jr. 
Date Prepared 11/02/21 
 
The valuation of all permits issued for October totaled $7,705,592.  While Covid-19 is still a major concern for our 
local economy, development has taken an upward trend compared to the past several years. 
 
All permit fees collected for the month totaled $45,145.  Of the permit fees collected for the month, $4,575 was 
collected in technology fees.  Plan review fees collected during the month totaled $2,030. Business Registration fees 
collected totaled $1,420. 
 
The Inspectors did a total of 681 inspections for the month.  During the month of October, six (6) business 
inspections were completed.  A total of 332 permits were issued for the month.    Forty-five (45) plan reviews were 
completed for October. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

2021 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $7.9 $18.2 $6 $4.4 $5.9 $6.4 $7.5 $4.9 $8.4 $7.7 $7.7
All Bldgs $ (M) $6.8 $16.3 $2.5 $1.1 $4.8 $3.9 $4.3 $3.7 $5.7 $5.3 $5.4
Residential $ (K) $1.2M $900 $1.2M $250 $1.1M $3.1M $1.4M $1.M $480 $2.5M $1.3M
Misc $ (M) $1 $1.9 $3.5 $3.4 $1.1 $2.5 $3.2 $1.1 $2.7 $2.4 $2.3
Permit Fee $ (K) $26.6 $32.5 $57 $34 $21 $38 $29 $26 $36 $45 $34.5
Inspections 398 462 625 538 483 424 483 472 590 681 516
Permits Issued 215 295 359 296 254 308 324 267 311 332 296
Plan Reviews 48 94 71 68 45 51 59 50 45 45 58

2020 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $14 $5.3 $2.7 $5.1 $3.2 $8.9 $4.7 $10.9 $28.8 $7.3 $4.6 $6.3 $8.5
All Bldgs $ (M) $11 $2.3 $1.4 $3.8 $1.9 $7.0 $3.1 $9.1 $27.1 $1.7 $2.9 $3.5 $6.2
Residential $ (K) $2.6M $843 $435 $2.4M $858 $834 $575 $1.6M $375 $1.3 $1.1 $191 $1.1
Misc $ (M) $3 $3 $1.3 $1.3 $1.3 $1.9 $1.6 $1.8 $1.7 $5.6 $1.7 $2.80 $2.3
Permit Fee $ (K) $45 $48 $29 $38 $33 $53 $32 $47 $45 $37 $30 $30 $39
Inspections 597 351 612 430 474 502 619 532 709 625 484 492 536
Permits Issued 271 249 257 229 251 273 268 277 294 238 230 227 255
Plan Reviews 17 43 41 45 50 46 36 48 63 31 24 30 40
Min Housing 134 136 157 157 157 157
In Process



 

 
 

1 

 
PARAMOUNT & GEC 
October 2021 
Prepared by:  Adam Twiss 
Date Prepared:  11/08/2021 

--------------PARAMOUNT THEATRE-------------- 
• October capacity unrestricted; masks required. 
• October activity included 15 rental/use days, including 8 public performances. 
• October COVID-19 cancelled/rescheduled programming includes: 20 days, 11 public perfs. 
• Repairs and Maintenance:  

Sound system (Foundation funded), awnings (shared with Foundation), Roof (TBD) 
 

--------------FINANCIAL-------------- 
 

Expenses –$55,769:   Labor - $23,533 / Operations – $17,705 /Renter BO Payout – $14,531 
Revenues - $14,718:      Tickets -$14,268 / Rentals- $0/ Concession- $450 (revenue not yet posted)  
 

  21-Jul 21-Aug 21-Sep 21-Oct 21-
Nov 21-Dec 22-Jan 22-Feb 22-

Mar 22-Apr 22-
May 22-Jun FY 22 Total Average 

Exp $53,123   $32,009  $38,135   $55,769                   $179,036  $44,759  

Rev  $2,881   $11,843  $11,014   $14,718                   $40,456  $10,114  

  20-Jul 20-Aug 20-Sep 20-Oct 20-Nov 20-Dec 21-Jan 21-Feb 21-Mar 21-Apr 21-May 21-Jun FY 21 Total Average 

Exp $31,420  $29,780  $18,774  $23,883  $31,146  $49,123  $36,588  $26,876  $44,093  $52,183  $42,371  $91,817  $478,053  $39,838  

Rev $1,218  <$633> $1,625  $635  $1,508  $2,260  $15,982  $4,697  $5,712  $8,874  $58,020  $69,591  $169,509  $14,126  

 
--------------GOLDSBORO EVENT CENTER-------------- 

• October capacity unrestricted; masks required. 
• October activity included 11 event rental days, including 6 non-revenue City events. 
• October COVID-19 cancelled or postponed include 2 event rental days. 
• Repairs and Maintenance:  

Landscaping, tree-trimming, and front garden beds planned. 
Improvements to parking lot lighting under consideration. 

 

--------------FINANCIAL-------------- 
Expenses – $15,505: Labor -  $5,888 / Operational – $9,617 
Revenues – $9,203:            Rentals - $7,483 / Amenities - $804 / F&B – $916 
City Use – $4,550:  Value of Non-revenue City use of facility - $4,550 

  21-Jul 21-Aug 21-Sep 21-Oct 21-
Nov 21-Dec 22-Jan 22-Feb 22-Mar 22-

Apr 
22-

May 22-Jun FY 22 Total Average 

Exp  $4,602   $10,442   $8,520  $15,505                   $39,069   $9,767  

Rev  $-     $5,673   $6,192   $9,203                   $21,068   $5,267  

City  $2,400   $0     $2,205   $4,550                   $9,155   $2,289  

  20-Jul 20-Aug 20-Sep 20-Oct 20-
Nov 20-Dec 21-Jan 21-Feb 21-Mar 21-

Apr 
21-

May 21-Jun FY 21 Total Average 

Exp $12,499  $13,295  $16,383  $7,931  $6,727  $14,807  $8,153  $11,245  $13,874  $7,339  $9,469  $14,556  $136,278  $11,356  

Rev $0  <$3,694> $541  $6,894  $6,122  $12,067  <$1,732> $4,695  $5,778  $3,737  $5,168  $3,765  $43,941  $3,662  

City $0  $0  $0  $0  $1,925  $850  $0  $0  $775  $775  $750  $1,250  $6,325  $527  

 



 
1 
 

Parks & Recreation 
October - 2021 
Prepared By: Joshua Shockley/Felicia Brown 
Date Prepared – 11/05/2021 

 
 

• Our Youth Fall Sports Season continued during this month.  Youth participated in soccer, flag football,     
T-Ball and Baseball Leagues. 
 

• USTA NC Singles League Championship was held October 7th – 10th at Herman Park Tennis Courts, Clay 
Tennis Courts at Goldsboro Golf Course and seven (7) other tennis court sites throughout Wayne and 
Greene Counties – 103 teams 
 

• Goldsboro Golf Course hosted the Earl Seniors Tournament on October 5th – 44 participants; High 
School Teams on October 7th – 31 participants; and Desk 4 Day Tournament on October 8th – 56 
participants 
 

• 2A Neuse Six Girls High School Tennis Conference Championship held at Herman Park Tennis Courts on 
October 14th – 150 participants 
 

• Our 3rd Annual Ride the City bicycling event held on October 16th – 50 participants 
 

• Goldsboro Golf Course hosted the George D. Williams Memorial on October 16th – 84 participants and 
the High School Regionals on October 18th – 45 participants 
 

• Girls 1A High School Regional Tennis Tournament held at Herman Park Tennis Courts on   October 22nd 
and 23rd – 250 participants 
 

• Bryan Multi-Sports Complex hosted the Girls LaxFest (lacrosse tournament) on                     October 23rd 
and 24th – 48 teams 
 

• Park Maintenance Staff continue to clean our park restrooms and the restrooms at the HUB daily 
 

• Park Maintenance Staff continue to tend to the landscaping on Center Street 
 

• Several P&R Staff attended the NCRPA Annual Conference held in Winston-Salem, NC from October 25th – 
27th; P&R Director presented at conference  

 
• As of July 2021, expenditures at all locations on the following report now reflect ALL STAFF associated 

with/assigned to that location – Full-time staff, Part-time staff and Seasonal staff 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 

 
 
**Expenditures include part-time labor cost, facility operational cost, and full-time labor cost.  Not included in 
expenditures is loan/bond payments and electricity for the areas with the exception of our Golf Course.  All of 
these costs are included for our Golf Course Expenditures. 

2021 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 
AVG 

Herman Park Rec Center  
             Program Revenue $220 $530 $390 $230 $5,860 $1,250 $810 $410 $120 $305   $1,013 

Rental Revenue  $0 $330 $0 $1,110 $270 $750 $1,245 $170 $1,550 $1,350   $678 

Facility Usage 152 193 287 187 294 405 455 172 249 358   275 

Expenditures $3,487 $1,054 $1,538 $405 $384 $1304 $12,189 $15,981 $5,095 $4,812   $4,625 

              

WA Foster Rec Center              

Program Revenue $185 $190 $535 $195 $250 $2,110 $825 $140 $120 $85   $464 

Rental Revenue $450 $0 $285 $690 $2100 $1,200 $538 $1193 $1,110 $750   $840 

Facility Usage 660 924 1304 1,378 1,475 1,478 1,793 867 1043 983   1,191 

Expenditures $4,429 $2,992 $4,610 $8,413 $3,586 $7,447 $20,580 $25,305 $14,427 $19,173   $11,096 

              

T. C. Coley Community Center              

Rental Revenue $578 $450 $450 $585 $578 $578 $607 $578 $578 $705   $569 

Expenses $4,797 $1416 $0 $1,848 $0 $0 $0 $4041 $0 $0   $1,210 

              

Specialized Recreation              

Program Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   $0 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   $0 

Facility Usage 0 73 92 0 5 31 $34 18 103 178   53 

Expenditures $1,048 $737 $1,049 $0 $0 $0 $461 $288 $2945 $5,523   $1,199 

              

Senior Programs & Pools              

Program Revenue $140 $140 $140 $140 $897 $4,707 $7,690 $2284 $140 $1,168   $1,745 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $300 $0 $0 $0   $30 

Facility Usage 200 371 310 720 608 2,245 1,176 1,251 448 525   786 

Expenditures $1,591 $2435 $1,048 $1,642 $6,203 $13,483 $22,041 $17,647 $7,327 $762   $7,418 

              
Athletics, Field & 
Picnic Shelters, BMSC              

Program Revenue $1,550 $10,200 $14,891 $3,760 $7,185 $4,880 $9,056 $13,708 $1,755 $2,860   $6,985 

Field / Shelter Rental $ $400 $200 $1,675 $450 $1,555 $480 $1,305 $0 0 $750   $615 

Facility Usage 8,612 13,825 15,500 14,339 29,339 15,533 8,476 7,525 11,253 43,298   16,770 

Expenditures $6,866 $9.515 $11,471 $28,210 $33,191 $33,230 $23,614 $24,926 $17,977 $72,084   $26,108 

              

Golf Course              

Revenues $36,583 $9,209 $53,613 $66,926 $72,876 $54,559 $61,379 $59,850 $66.788 $62,129   $54,391 

Expenditures $32,349 $35,969 $36,825 $40,143 $54,594 $67,883 $32,255 $48,088 $50,243 $38,778   $43,713 

Rounds of Golf 486 596 1,714 2,120 2,641 2,421 2,556 2,819 2,097 2,232   1,968 

Net $4.235 -26,760 $16,788 $26,782 $18,282 -13,325 $29,124 $11,762 $16,545 $23,351   $16,030 

              

Special Events              

Sponsorships / Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,666 $979 $170 $0 $475   $429 

Participation 0 0 434 0 0 153 0 44 0 50   68 

Expenditures $0 0 $171 $110 $110 $1,980 $1,538 $110 $110 $1,630   $576 

              

TOTAL REVENUE $40,106 $21,249 $71,979 $74,086 $91,571 $73,260 $84,734 $78,503 $72,161 $69,902   $67,755 

TOTAL EXPENSES $54,567 $54,118 $56,712 $80,77, $98,069 $125,327 $112,612 $136,276 $98,014 $142,762   $95,945 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR             $677,550 

TOTAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR             $959,448 



 

 
 

 
 

2020 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 
AVG 

Herman Park Rec Center  
             Program Revenue $2,361 $3,933 $336 $0 $0 $0 $20 $0 $20 $275 $80 $20 $587 

Rental Revenue  $260 $1,225 $1,240 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $235 $0 $137 $258 

Facility Usage 418 1,082 267 0 0 0 0 0 36 97 42 69 168 

Expenditures $4,257 $5,205 $2,542 $2,270 $1,388 $641 $188 $910 $2,608 $2,593 $614 $1,459 $2,056 

              

WA Foster Rec Center              

Program Revenue $10 $5 $15 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $70 $195 $290 $275 $72 

Rental Revenue $975 $1,563 $900 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,260 $3,048 $113 $0 $655 

Facility Usage 4,050 3,604 605 0 0 0 0 0 30 150 549 737 810 

Expenditures $10,396 $8,788 $5,335 $2,833 $3,216 $3,732 $2,980 $1,749 $2,781 $5,069 $2677 $3,650 $4,434 

              

Specialized Recreation              

Program Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $460 $0 $0 $38 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 

Facility Usage 354 339 197 0 0 0 0 0 0 126 22 10 87 

Expenditures $2,020 $2,164 $1,173 $40 $226 $58 $0 $165 $300 $694 $393 $88 $610 

              

Senior Programs & Pools              

Program Revenue $280 $201 $157 $0 $0 $3,469 $5,425 $1,859 $352 $140 $846 $140 $1,072 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Facility Usage 1,144 1,532 674 0 33 1,107 2,772 1,398 205 104 184 137 774 

Expenditures $2,223 $2,380 $7,343 $4,686 $1,961 $12,588 $21,173 $12,077 $6,149 $1596 $1683 $450 $6,712 

              
Athletics, Field & 
Picnic Shelters, BMSC              

Program Revenue $3,262 $5,000 $5,080 $0 $0 $2,420 $1,725 $195 $1,200 $400 $3,788 $440 $1,959 

Field / Shelter Rental $ $700 $5,010 $1,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $750 $0 $0 $638 

Facility Usage 12,865 17,845 6,585 300 644 1,522 3,425 3,724 5,130 9,781 20,274 5,839 7,328 

Expenditures $6,663 $14,564 $11,999 $13,607 $38,561 $7,269 $13,661 $9,689 $7,792 $9,321 $7,725 $8,110 $12,413 

              

Golf Course              

Revenues $42,254 $16,420 $48,796 $55,207 $61,268 $50,249 $71,304 $46,781 $61,011 $59,039 $46,994 $24,172 $48,625 

Expenditures $44,862 $23,671 $55,861 $43,212 $42,815 $165,446 $32,993 $43,191 $41,328 $33,101 $45,288 $43,392 $51,263 

Rounds of Golf 973 557 1,421 1,805 2,227 2,158 2,137 1,867 1,930 1,871 1,542 922 1,618 

Net - $2,608 $-7,251 -$7,065 $11,995 $18,454 -$115,197 $38,311 $3,589 $19,683 $25,938 $1,706 
-

$19,220 -$2,639 

              

Special Events              

Sponsorships / Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $300 $210 $0 $40 

Participation 0 0 130 0 0 0 0 0 0 175 32 3,489 319 

Expenditures $332 $0 $292 $34 $0 $288 $110 $0 $0 $2,132 $1,204 $1,095 $457 

              

TOTAL REVENUE $50,102 $33,357 $57,724 $55,207 $61,268 $56,138 $78,474 $48,835 $63,913 $64,842 $52,291 $25,184 $53,945 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR             $647,335 



 

 
 

1 

 
PLANNING 
October 2021 
Prepared By: Rachael Smith 
Date Prepared:  November 8, 2021 

During the month of October the Planning staff reviewed and signed off on all commercial and 
residential building and sign permits.   Staff continues to prepare for upcoming meetings and has 
overseen contracted projects for the ADA Transition Plan, a marketing contract for GWTA and 
landscaping maintenance for Welcome to Goldsboro signs and enhancement areas. Staff is in the 
process for compliance with the NCGS Legislative 160D updates, including updating all copies online 
and in-office. On-going projects include tree and stump removal, preparation of transportation-related 
documents and preparation of case reports.  Code Enforcement issues $25.00 parking violation tickets 
within the downtown area or upon notification elsewhere in the City. During the month of October (5) 
tickets were issued 

Parked in Wrong Direction 3 
Parked in Proximity to Fire Hydrant 0 

Parked in a Prohibited Area (No Parking Zone) 2 
Other (Bus Loading Zone, Crosswalk, Sidewalk, Alley) 0 

2021 
 

  

2021 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total Average

Staff Level
Site Plans 0 4 4 1 9 1
Subdivison 6 3 2 0 11 1

Planning/City Council
Rezonings 0 0 3 0 1 3 4 0 2 0 13 1

Special Use 2 1 0 3 6 1

Historic District Commission
Commission 

Review
0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0

Staff Review 1 0 0 1 0 2 1 0 1 0 6 1

Grass Cutting 
# Lots 0 0 1 36 68 43 33 58 37 35 311 39

Grass Cutting 
Payments $0.00 $0.00 $175.00 $1,420.00 $2,430 $2,190 $1,740 $3,025 $1,965 $1,770 $14,715 $1,839

Tagged 
Vehicles

25 15 12 21 23 25 11 24 15 1 172 14

Illegal Signs 
Removed

52 77 380 36 30 174 147 155 189 222 1462 122

Bags of Litter 
Picked Up 210 186 231 232 204 206 253 212 261 239 2234 186

*Adoption of 160D has allowed all Site Plans & Subdivisions to be 
reviewed at staff level no longer needing Planning/City Council 

review. Monthy report updated to reflect current process.

Planning Dept.

Code Enforcement 

*Adoption of 160D changed Conditional Use permits to Special Use 
permits. These were not previously reported. Monthy report 

updated to reflect current process.



 

 
2020 
 

2020 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total Average 
Site/Subdivision Plans 

Planning 
Commission 2 4 2 3 2 1 3 3 2 1 7 3 33 3 

Staff Level 0 2 1 1 1 2 2 1 2 3 3 3 21 2 
  

Rezonings 2 1 1 0 0 1 0 0 2 3 2 1 13 1 
Historic District Commission 
Commission 

Review 1 1 0 0 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 1 

Staff 
Review 1 0 1 2 2 1 0 2 2 2 1 2 16 1 

  
Code Enforcement  
Grass 
Cutting  
# Lots 

0 0 0 36 53 28 82 119 53 124 35 0 530 66 

Grass 
Cutting  
Payments 

0 0 0 $2,115 $3,025  $2,205  $4,025  $6,850  $2,870  $5,340 $1,905  $      -    $28,335 $3,542 

Junk 
Vehicles 0 7 2 2 27 0 0 0 2 3 10 16 69 6 

Tagged 
Vehicles 0 43 7 47 2 5 25 50 26 21 25 25 276 23 

Illegal Signs 
Removed 0 0 143 67 13 38 80 900 24 44 247 166 1722 144 

Bags of 
Litter 
Picked Up 

292 2438 261 187 224 197 211 250 737 419 209 328 5753 479 

 



 

 
  

1 

GOLDSBORO POLICE DEPARTMENT 
October 2021 
Prepared By:  Michael D. West          
Date Prepared:  November 5, 2021  
 
Total Part I Crime (Homicide, Rape, Robbery, Aggravated Assault, Burglary, Larceny, Motor Vehicle Theft, 
and Arson) for October 2021 were 133, compared to 174 for October 2020. 
 
Property with an estimated value of $289,107 was reported stolen, while property with an estimated 
value of $41,063 was recovered. 
 
Officers arrested 127 people and issued 278 citations during the month. There were 25 drug-related 
charges.  
 
There was 1 report(s) of assault(s) on officer(s).  

PART I CRIME COMPARISON & TREND 
2021 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total AVG 

OFFENSE 
Homicide 1  0 0  0  1 1  0  1  1  1      6 0.6 
Rape 3  0 1  2  1 0  1  0  0  2      10 1.0 
Robbery 7    3 2  1  8 3  5  4  1  5      39 3.9 
Aggravated Assault 10 11 10  24  12 13  15  18  16  9      138 13.8 
Breaking & Entering 26 19 18  30  25 34  21  23  15  12      223 22.3 
Larceny 88    70  87 83  114 90  90  116  99  96      933 93.3 
Motor Vehicle Theft 8  9 5  7  11 10  7  7  12  7      83 8.3 
Arson 0 0 1  0  0  0  1  0  0  1      3 0.3 
TOTALS 143 112 124   147 172  151  140  169  144  133      1435 143.5 

2020 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total AVG 
OFFENSE 
Homicide 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0  1  0  0 2 0.2 
Rape 1 1 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 3 1 1 13 1.1 
Robbery 5 7 2 0 4 6 4 5 1 4 1 7 46 3.8 
Aggravated Assault 11 12 14 9 9 19 25 20 28 23 15 13 198 16.5 
Breaking & Entering 29 27 21 23 18 27 30 36 25 25 38 39 338 28.2 
Larceny 112 122 113 97 79 104 108 136 94 113 105 108 1291 107.6 
Motor Vehicle Theft 9 8 7 6 6 11 6 10 7 5 7 6 88 7.3 
Arson 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 1 3 0.3 
TOTALS 166 177 157 136 116 168 178 209 155 174 167 175 1979 165 

 

 
Revenue collected for October 2021 included:    

 Police Reports   $ 

 
 

266.00  
 Fingerprints   $   60.00  
 Special Events    $ 100.00  
             Total     $ 426.00   
        



 

 
 

1 

PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
October 
Prepared By: Robert Sherman 
Date Prepared: November 15, 2021 
 
Water Treatment Plant 

• The Water Treatment Plant operations are proceeding smoothly. 
o The EPA signed the Lead and Copper Rule revisions on June 10, 2021. The effective date is 

set for December 16, 2021. Mandatory increases to sampling, education, inventory, and 
service line replacement are of note. More resources are needed to meet these 
requirements, which have been cut from recent budget requests. 

o Still are waiting on scheduling from Divers to clean the Intake Structure Screen 
o One uncertified operator is working towards certification. 

 
Water Reclamation Facility 

• The Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) operations have been demanding. In 2021, the plant is 
operating at 87% capacity. The average daily flows for October were 7.00 -MGD.  

o All of the city’s 26 pump stations are operating well, with the exception of the 117, Little 
Cherry, and New Hope pump station bar screens, impacts from high flows, and Big Cherry’s 
generator is only able to run in manual and parts are ordered.  

o Remote communication with the obsolete telemetry system continues to be prepared for 
an upgrade. Failed telemetry radios have delayed emergency response, but no violations 
have occurred during each event. Monies were approved with ARP funds to repair.  

o One uncertified operator is working towards certification.  
 
Compost Facility 

• Seventy-six cubic yards of compost and mulch were sold in October 2021. 
 
 
Historical data for water and sewer volumes are in million gallons per day (MGD) and are average 
daily flows for each month. The results for October are estimated, due to all the results are not in 
for the month. 
 

2021 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Monthly 
Average 

Water* 5.878 6.348 6.000 5.996 6.619 6.066 6.149 5.872 5.854 5.660   5.459 
Sewer** 16.73 19.28 14.68 10.97 8.61 12.99 12.74 12.44 7.98 7.00   12.34 
Compost 297 109 733 1406 902 529 286 133 283 76   520 

*Water permit- 12.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
 

2020 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Monthly 
Average 

Water* 6.032 6.201 6.318 6.117 6.639 6.779 7.033 6.529 6.564 6.368 6.109 5.953 6.386 
Sewer** 9.71 13.45 9.95 8.60 10.11 12.33 10.36 12.83 10.00 9.84 13.87 12.87 11.16 
Compost 283 950 824 914 727 570 237 389 286 830 428 329 563 

*Water permit- 12.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 



 

 



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
4.5 11.4 2.3 14.9 5.4 13.1 4.5 7.2 2.3 12.3 7.8

8.6 6.6 3.6 2.3 3.1 2.0 1.0 2.4 15.1 1.0 4.6

17 27 22 22 21 17 20 24 26 37 23.3

18 11 13 27 14 13 17 18 18 21 17.0

9 4 6 8 4 3 1 2 6 2 4.5

18 14 12 28 34 27 18 26 22 18 21.7

52 45 44 42 40 41 46 47 35 52 44.4

14 14.0

0 0 60 127 95 86.1 98.2 98 144 77.8 78.6

0 10 41 94.6 85.4 149.6 126.5 122.9 121 56.2 80.7

294 288 286 263 243 248 310 280 198 257 266.7

48$       50$       56$       51$       40$       53$       65$       59$       52$       50$       52.4

0.9 0.9 1.1 1.1 0.9 1.2 1.1 1.2 1.0 1.0 1.040

97 82 89 94 81 97 58 38 12 7 65.6

0.5 0.5 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.6 0.611

11 1 8 4 7 4 6 5 5 7 5.8

0 5 30 31 26 19 6 8 11 10 14.6
83 65 39 65 18 34 57 39 23 45 46.8

175 81 120.8 178 117 135 137 125 101.8 76.6 124.7
17.33 0.84 2.16 0.00 1.44 3.05 0.00 0.82 0.00 0.20 2.584
14.00 0.48 0.00 0.28 12.82 14.02 0.18 1.17 9.45 7.25 5.964

1 3 2 4 5 6 9 2 2 3 3.7

22.3 12.2 35.4 17.3 3.4 18.9 18.5 25.8 9.1 37.8 11.8 12.9 18.8
5.8 5.2 7.6 5.1 12.6 7.6 11.8 10.8 11.0 12.5 4.7 4.2 8.2
27 22 27 19 9 16 30 24 20 26 15 26 21.8
12 10 29 19 12 9 17 5 16 19 5 7 13.3
9 9 2 3 2 9 3 8 9 6 4 44 9.0

34 36 33 22 30 42 33 17 21 13 17 18 26.3

42 23 54 50 49 58 69 63 62 47 37 51 50.4
78 56 54 23 24 24 51 48 53 56 31 46 45.3
0 0 44 73 101.6 98 149 135 115 52 32.5 0 66.7
0 0 50 92 89 88 110 64 70 89 12 0 55.3

228 357 209 296 245 277 292 288 285 247 280 251 271.3
46$       67$       52$       60$       52$       56$       70$       53$       64$       52$       52$       50$       56.2

0.9 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.0
103 79 93 88 88 88 117 18 62 107 66 115.18 85.3
0.4 0.7 0.1 0.9 0.9 0.7 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.8 0.7 1.1 0.7

5 3 9 4 2 6 5 5 6 6 9 10 5.8

0 0 18 29 10 24 26 26 34 15 10 0 16.0
49 83 30 28 35 50 64 30 17 39 41 75 45.1
48 112.3 66.2 128 123.1 142.7 145.7 138.3 68.2 93 123.1 137 110.5

0.08 0.50 0.05 1.73 2.07 6.96 0.70 4.71 0.15 0.08 0.01 0.24 1.4
0.00 0.00 0.00 2.51 1.17 12.27 6.12 11.30 1.52 2.28 9.30 0.00 3.9

1 7 5 5 5 4 5 5 5 3 8 3 4.7

Public Works Department

October 2021
Prepared by:  Chad Edge

Date Prepared: 04 November 2021

2020

Cemetery Funerals

Utility Cut Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs

Storm Pipe RepairsSt
re

e
t 

&
 S

to
rm

Streets Swept (miles)

Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)

Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Garage
Total Work Orders

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Solid 

Waste

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

2021

B
ld

g 
 &

 

G
ro

u
n

d
s Radio, Electrical, Bldg 

Sign Repairs

ROW Mowing (ac)

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)

Signing responsibilities transferred to Engineering Department

Utility Cut Repairs

Solid 

Waste
Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Cemetery Funerals

St
re

e
t 

&
 

St
o

rm

Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)
Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Storm Pipe Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs
Streets Swept (miles)

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Garage
Total Work Orders

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
Sign Repairs

B
ld

g 
 &

 

G
ro

u
n

d
s

ROW Mowing (ac)

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Monthly Highlights

Departments AVG

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 &
 

C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 &
 

C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

Water Repairs

Sewer Repairs

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed

Meter Install/Changed

Buildings & Grounds: Multiple electrical, plumbing, structural, etc. repairs Citywide—Focused on vegetation management along 
Harding Drive; Began installation of Christmas lights within downtown in preparation of Lights Up event.

Distribution & Collections: Call duty responded to 25 after hour calls—total of 33.25 hours; Completed 121 work orders total.

Streets & Stormwater: Call duty responded to several emergency calls this month, including clearing eight fallen trees from 
roadways--17 hours overtime total.  Four (4) Streets maintenance staff attended the NC LTAP Plans Reading for Transportation 
personnel class and six (6) Streets/Stormwater staff attended the NC LTAP Basic workzone training course at NC State Universi ty.

Solid Waste: Both transfer stations are operational.  



 

 
 

1 

Travel and Tourism 
October 2021 
Prepared by: Joanna Ferrin and Amber Herring  
Date Prepared 11/04/21 
 

● Inquiries were fulfilled for the month of October by the TTO—917 e-

inquiries. 

● Total hotel revenue generated in September was $1,957,479, which is up 

6.7% YOY. October revenue not yet released. 

● For the month, TTO Facebook page had 94 page likes and 95 new follows. 

Instagram page had 64 new followers. 

● T&T guided a team around Goldsboro-Wayne County with WRAL Out & About for 

a sponsored feature. The Paramount Theatre, The GBW Filling Station and 

The Mount Olive Historical Society were the locations featured. The 

segment can be viewed here: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Rw3nHuTJedk  

● T&T guided a team from Visit NC around Goldsboro-Wayne County for a 

Social Media Spotlight, obtained through the Visit NC Partner Program. 

Multiple Instagram stories, 1 Twitter post, and 1 Facebook post were 

published. You can view the Facebook spotlight here: 

https://www.facebook.com/visitNC/posts/10159979883869626  

● North Carolina Laxfest Girls Session Tournament took place Oct. 23 and 

24. At the Bryan Multi-Sports Complex 48 teams were in attendance with a 

total population size of around 3,400 people. The Boys Session is set to 

arrive Nov. 12 and will be competing Nov. 13 + 14.  

● T&T attended the Sports ETA Symposium in Birmingham, AL to expand 

connections in the sports world via rights-holders and other 

destinations, and to introduce rights-holders to Goldsboro-Wayne County 

as a sports destination.  

City Occupancy Tax Collections 

*October occupancy tax information not yet released. 

 

 July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June YTD Average 

2021-22 $77, 369 $89,826 $83,501 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $250,696 $83,565 

2020-21 $63,053 $79,612 $70,672 $86,804 $58,755 $103,416 $65,157 $54,670 $61,336 $94,544 $75,710 $93,168 $906,897 $75,575 
 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Rw3nHuTJedk
https://www.facebook.com/visitNC/posts/10159979883869626


RESOLUTION NO. 2021- 

RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION 
FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY JERRY ARTIS 

AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
FOR MORE THAN 27 YEARS 

WHEREAS, Jerry Artis retires on November 30, 2021 as a Solid Waste Heavy Equipment 
Operator with the Public Works Department of the City of Goldsboro with more than 27 years of service; 
and 

WHEREAS, Jerry began his career on February 16, 1994 as an Equipment Operator II with the 
General Services Department; and  

WHEREAS, Jerry’s position was reclassified to Equipment Operator with the Public Works 
Department; and 

WHEREAS, Jerry’s position was reclassified as Solid Waste Heavy Equipment Operator with the 
Public Works Department where he has served until his retirement; and  

WHEREAS, Jerry has proven himself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who has gained 
the admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of 
themselves, City employees and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Jerry Artis their deep 
appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by him to the City over the years. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro, North Carolina that:   

1. We express to Jerry our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity and good health in
his future endeavors.

2. This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and
shall be in full force and effect from and after this 15th day of November, 2021.

__________________________ 
David Ham. Mayor  

Attested by: 

__________________  
Laura Getz, City Clerk 




	Agenda 11-15-21
	ws Item e Proposed Council Meeting Schedule 2022
	Item A Minutes 11-1-21
	MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL
	NOVEMBER 1, 2021
	UCITY COUNCIL MEETING
	Present:  Mayor David Ham, Presiding
	Councilmember Hiawatha Jones
	Councilmember Bill Broadaway
	Councilmember Brandi Matthews
	Councilmember Gene Aycock
	Absent:  Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack
	UApproval of Minutes.U  Councilmember Broadaway made a motion to approve the minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of October 18, 2021. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Aycock and unanimously carried.
	UDistrict 5 Swearing In CeremonyU. Judge Charles Gaylor, III administered the oath of office as District 5 Councilmember to Charles Gaylor, IV. Councilmember Gaylor took his seat as the District 5 Councilmember.
	UAdoption of the Agenda.U  Upon motion of Councilmember Aycock, seconded by Councilmember Jones and unanimously carried, Council adopted the agenda.
	UPublic Comment Period.U  Mayor Ham opened the public comment period and the following people spoke:
	1. Alicia Pierce, 806 South Taylor Street, shared comments concerning the Historic District Commission and shared concerns regarding councilmember access to the building.
	2. Don Halliday commented on the beauty of Center Street and complimented city staff regarding their work.
	3. Karl Landgren invited Council and the public to the Wayne County Liberty First meeting on the 3PrdP Tuesday held at Victory Baptist Church.
	4. Chip Craig invited Council to attend the Ground Breaking New Train Project on Thursday, November 4 at Herman Park.

	Item B Warm Body Warm Soul
	Slide Number 1
				MISSION STATEMENT
					About Us
		Warm Body Warm Soul Help Center Services
	F.E.D. (Feed, Empower, Deliver)�Pre-packed lunches served Mon., Wed., & Fri. (12:00 p.m.-1:00 p.m.)
	Wash With Care Laundry�Cards are distributed 1st and 3rd Thursdays
	Toiletries, blankets, and sleeping bags are available upon the individuals’ needs.
	Dress My Way Clothing Center�Individuals can choose what they need from the clothing center
	Housing and Job Resources�We assist in searching for jobs, emergency shelters, and housing
	2021 Events
	Our Partners
	Slide Number 12

	Item D S-10-21 Morquecho
	Item E SU-11-21 Sandra Bell Memo
	Item F  SU-12-21 Agenda Memo PH
	Item G Tiffany Gardens Phase I
	Item H Final Award 412 E Walnut (Oliver Design)
	Agenda Memo 2021-11-15 Final Award 412 E Walnut (Oliver Design)_0
	Resolution Final Award 412 E Walnut (Oliver Design)City Co_0
	2021-10-11 Oliver Design Group, LLC
	412 E Walnut St MAP
	Appraisal Card 412 E Walnut 07-06-21

	Item I Concur 400-402 Miller Ave (Bogan)
	Agenda Memo 2021-11-15 Concurrence Sale 400-402 Miller(Bogan)_0
	RESOL Concurrence Sale 400-402 Miller (Bogan)_0
	DOC102921-10292021095941

	Item J Goldsboro Christmas Parade 2021
	Agenda Memo Christmas Parade Temporary Street Closure - Chief signed
	Goldsboro Christmas Parade 2021 Application

	Item K Monthly Departmental Reports
	Item K-1a Community Relations Monthly Report-October 2021
	Item K-1b Community Relations Monthly Report-October 2021 ADDENDUM
	Item K-2 Downtown Monthly Report
	Other

	Item K-3 ENGINEERING MONTHLY REPORT
	Item K-4 Finance Monthly Report
	Item K-5 Fire Monthly Report Oct 2021
	Item K-6 HR Monthly Rpt_Oct
	Item K-7 IT Monthly Report October 2021
	Item K-8 Inspections - Mo.Rep Oct 2021
	Item K-9 Paramount_GEC Monthly Report-October 2021
	Item K-10 Parks and Recreation Monthly Report
	Item K-11 Planning Monthly Report October 2021
	Item K-12 Police Monthly Report
	Item K-13 Public Utilities Monthly Report
	Item K-14 PW Council Report- 2021 10
	Item K-15 Tourism Monthly Report
	Item L Jerry Artis Retirement RES
	Item M  Small Business Saturday 2021
	ADPB05B.tmp
	Slide Number 1
	General Fund – Collections�Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)
	General Fund Collections�     FY 2020-21 Budget to Actual
	Stormwater Fund – Collections�Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)�and�Budget to Actual FY2020-21
	Utility Fund – Collections�Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)
	Utility Fund Collections�FY 2020-21 Budget to Actual
	Downtown MSD & �Occupancy Tax Collections �Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)
	Downtown MSD & �Occupancy Tax Collections�FY 2020-21 Budget to Actual
	    Actual Collections	�Comparison Actual Current & Prior (unaudited)
	Summary – �FY2020-21 Budget to Actual Expenditures 
	     Fund Balance Appropriations�    FY 2020-21
	FY2020-21 Net Operating Results�(Modified Accrual - unaudited)
	 

	ADPBB7.tmp
	Military & 1st Responders Appreciation Festival
	Military & 1st Responders� Appreciation Festival
	NC Freedom Fest
	Slide Number 4
	NC Freedom Fest
	NC Freedom Fest
	NC Freedom Fest
	NC Freedom Fest


	County Department of Social ServicesHuman Services: Wayne
	INSERT NAME OF WATER PROVIDER: City of Goldsboro
	on date: December 1, 2021
	through date: November 30, 2022
	County Department of Social ServicesHuman Services County DSS: Wayne
	Company Name: 
	Print Name of Water Provider Representative: 
	Date: 
	Print Mailing Address: 
	Print City State Zip Code: 
	Telephone Number: 
	Provider Federal ID Number FEIN or SSN: 
	Print Name of County: Wayne County Department of Social Services
	Print Name of County DSS Director: Kimberly McGuire
	Date_2: 
	Print Mailing Address_2: 301 N Herman St, Box HH
	Print City State Zip Code_2: Goldsboro, NC  27530
	Telephone Number_2: 919-580-4034


